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FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOD

HANICHEMCO

Dear Valued shareholders, Valued partners, and all Company employees!

Dear Valued shareholders, Valued partners, and all Company employees!

The year 2024 has come to a close, marking a period filled with both significant
challenges and determined efforts to overcome adversity by Ha Bac Fertilizer and
Chemicals Joint Stock Company. Amid a global economy that has yet to fully recov-
er, persistent high inflation, and tight monetary policies affecting production and in-
vestment costs, the domestic fertilizer industry continues to face many unfavorable
developments. Fluctuations in input material prices, fierce competition from imported
products, and unstable market demand have all had a considerable impact on the
Company's production and business activities.

However, with resilience, determination, and unity, we have overcome those difficul-
ties to achieve proud results. Revenue remained stable, and gross profit improved
thanks to the optimization of production costs. Notably, a sharp decline in financial
expenses helped the Company reduce debt pressure and enhance operational effi-
ciency. Although total profit after tax decreased due to the absence of extraordinary
income, this further underscores the importance of identifying new and sustainable
growth drivers for the future.

Entering 2025, the Company will vigorously pursue its strategic goals: accelerating
production optimization, increasing productivity and business efficiency, and ex-
panding market reach. We will take the lead in adopting new technologies, enhanc-
ing management capabilities, and effectively utilizing available resources. In addition,
sustainable development, closely tied to environmental and social responsibility, will
serve as the guiding principle for all of the Company’s activities.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our
valued shareholders, partners, and all employees of the Company for your unwavering
support and dedicated contributions. With a spirit of unity, innovation, and determi-
nation, | firmly believe that we will overcome all challenges, affirm our position, and
move toward a future of sustainable development.

Sincerely!

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nagen Van Tiew

07 >0000



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION VISION AND MISSION
FOR THE 2020 - 2024 PERIOD

Vision
Indicators Unit 2020 2021 To become a leading enterprise in the production and business of fertilizers
and industrial chemicals in Vietham, pioneering green technology, aiming
Business Performance for sustainable development, and integrating into the global market.
Net Revenue Billion VND  2.790,09 4.49858 6.441,03 4.413,48 4.439,48
Gross Profit Billion VND  (294,79)  1.189,49  2.834,61 (15,27) 277,66
Profit Before Tax Billion VND  (1.460,23) 063 177915 858,28 6,85 0o
................................................................................................................................................................................ Mission
Profit After Tax Billion VND  (1.460,50) 063 177915 858,28 6,85 o . . , ,
Providing high-quality products: Meeting the demands of agricul-
Balance Sheet tural and industrial production with superior-quality, safe, and effi-
Total Assets Billion VND  8.620,53 8.029,26 7.581,44 6.74587 6.247,66 cient fertilizers and chemicals. : : :
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Sustainable development: Actively adopting modern technologies
Owner's Equity Billion VND  (1.977,40) (1.977,53)  (252,18) 611,61 618,45

to minimize environmental impact, striving for green and eco-friendly
Liabilities Billion VND  10.597,93 10.006,79 7.833,63 6.134,26  5.629,21 production.

Supporting Viethamese agriculture: Contributing to increased pro-

ductivity and crop quality, helping farmers optimize production and
Return on Average Assets (ROAA) % -16,26 0,01 22,79 11,98 omn impro\/e income.

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) o 1718 003 -15959 47759 111 Building a professional workforce: Investing in people, fostering a
dynamic, innovative, and collaborative working environment.
Enhancing value for shareholders and partners: Maintaining busi-
ness efficiency, strengthening brand value, and ensuring long-term
benefits for all stakeholders.

Key Financial Indicators
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE

COMPANY
General information

Trading Name

International Trading Name
Business Registration Certificate No.
Charter capital

Owner's equity

Securities code

Headdquarters address

Telephone

Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer & Chemicals Joint Stock Company
HANICHEMCO

No. 2400120344, initially issued by the Department of Planning
and Investment of Bac Giang Province on December 21, 2006, and
amended for the 14th time on November 6, 2024.
2.722.000.000.000 VND (Two trillion, seven hundred twenty-two
billion VND).

2.722.000.000.000 VND (Two trillion, seven hundred twenty-two
billion VND).

DHB

Tran Nguyen Han Street, Tho Xuong Ward, Bac Giang City, Bac
Giang Province.

02043854538

- 02043855018

-




Establishment and development process

Year 1959 « O

The Government of Vietnam signed an

agreement with the Government of China on o > Y
ear 1960

assistance in building the Ha Bac

Nitrogenous Fertilizer Factory Vietnam's first Nitrogenous Fertilizer Factory

commenced construction in Bac Giang province
Year 1965 « O

- After five years of construction, the Factory
was completed with a total of 130 structures.
- On February 3, 1965, the Thermal Power
Workshop was inaugurated. On May 19, 1965, o >
the Gasification Workshop successfully
produced coal gas as a raw material for
ammonia production.
- On June 1, 1965, the Mechanical Workshop
began operations

Year 1965-1973

However, due to the U.S. Bombing Campaign, the
Government decided to temporarily suspend the
factory’s operation. The Thermal Power workshop
was converted into the Ha Bac Thermal Power facto-
ry to continue production for economic and defense
purposes. The Mechanical Workshop was relocated
Year 1973 4 o to Lang’Giang and repurposed as Ha. Bac Chemical

Mechanical Factory, while the Chemical Equipment
Section was dismantled and returned to China.
During the bombing campaign, U.S. aircraft attacked
the Power Factory 52 times, dropping thousands of

tons of bombs. The factory's self-defense forces en-
Year 1975 4 o gaged in 63 battles, successfully shooting down one
U.S. aircraft and damaging several others

The factory was restored, rebuilt, and
expanded

The Government merged the Ha Bac Power
Factory, Ha Bac Chemical Mechanical Facto-
ry, and Chemical workshops to form the Ha

Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer Factory, produc- o P Year 1977

ing the first fertilizer bags under the “Golden
Rice” brand Deputy Prime Minister Do Muoi presided over the

inauguration of the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer
Year 1976-1983 4 o Factory, marking a significant milestone in Viet-

The factory faced many difficulties, and in nam'’s fertilizer industry

1981, the annual urea production reached only
9.000 tons, accounting for 9% of its designed
capacity. On January 17, 1983, the Chairman of o >
the Council of Ministers issued Directive 19-CP
to sustain and boost production at the factory

Year 1988

On October 10, 1988, the factory was renamed Ha
Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Union of

Year 1993 )  Enterprise

On February 13, 1993, the company was
renamed Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer & o » Year 2006
Chemicals Company
On October 20, 2006, the company was convert-

Yeal' 2016 4 o ed into Ha Bac.N{troge.nOl.J.s Fertilizer & Chemicals
One-Member Limited Liability Company

On January 1, 2016, the company was trans-
formed into Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer &
Chemicals Joint Stock Company

During its development, the Company has received attention from the highest Leaders of the Party and the
State. The General Secretaries of the Central Committee of the Communist Party, Nguyen Van Linh, Do Muoi,
Nong Duc Manh, and State Presidents Le Duc Anh, Tran Duc Luong, have visited and worked at the Company.

Prestigious titles

The Company was awarded the Third-Class Independence Order by the
State President

Year 2010

Year 2011 The Company was awarded the Emulation Flag by the Prime Minister

Year 2012 The Company was awarded the Emulation Flag by the Prime Minister
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BUSINESS LINES AND LOCATIONS OF THE

BUSINESS

Major lines of business

Business and production of urea nitrogenous fertilizer, liquid NH;, and industrial gas products.

Location of business

o< 16

Malaysia, India, ...

distributors across the country.

"
/o

.

3

2024 Annual Report

The company sells directly to manufacturing units, including DAP and MAP fertilizer
production, explosives production, monosodium glutamate (MSG) production,..., and also sells through its

<>

Distributed nationwide and exported. The company has been implementing the distribu-
tion of urea fertilizer to farmers across almost all provinces and cities through its network of distributors. The
Company’'s main export markets are Asian countries such as: South Korea, Japan, the Philippines, Taiwan,

OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO HANICHEMCO
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GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS ORGANIZATION
AND MANAGERIAL APPARATUS

Governance model

Currently, DHB is applying a governance model in accordance with Point a, Clause 1, Article
137 of the Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH14, issued on June 17, 2020, by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam. This model includes the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the General Director.

Business organization chart and managerial
apparatus

« General Meeting of Shareholders: The highest authority, with the right to make decisions on
matters within its duties and powers as prescribed by Law and the Company's charter.

« Board of Directors: The Company's Board of Directors consists of 05 members, including 02
non-executive members and 03 executive members. The Board of Directors manages the Com-
pany and ensures its operations comply with the Law on Enterprises, the Company's Charter,
and other legal regulations.

« Board of Supervisors: The Company's Board of Supervisors consists of 03 members, including
01 dedicated head and 02 concurrent members. The Board of Supervisors oversees the Board
of Directors and the General Director in managing and operating the Company. It functions in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises, the Company's Charter, and other legal regulations.

+ Board of Management: The structure of the Board of Management currently includes 01 Gen-
eral Director and 02 Deputy General Directors.

» General Director is the legal representative of the Company and is responsible for managing
the Company’s daily business operations. The General Director is subject to the supervision
of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors and performs the rights and obliga-
tions assigned under the resolutions of the Board of Directors, the Law on Enterprises, the
Company'’s Charter, and other legal regulations.

» 02 Deputy General Directors assist the General Director in managing various operational
areas of the Company as assigned and authorized by the General Director. They are ac-
countable to the General Director and Law for their assigned and delegated duties.

« Technical and functional departments: Assist the General Director and Deputy General Di-
rectors in management, including: Company Office, Human Resources department, Planning
and Investment department, Market department, Materials and Transportation department, Ac-
counting Statistics Finance department, Security Military department, Production Technology
department, Mechanical Construction department, Electrical Measurement department, KCS
department, Medical department.

« Production workshops: Operate according to their assigned functions, tasks, and authority
to support the Company’s production and business activities, including: Thermal workshop,
Gasification workshop, Ammonia workshop, Urea workshop, Finished Products workshop, Coal
workshop, Power workshop, Automation Measurement workshop, Chemical Equipment Repair
Installation workshop, Water workshop.

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUPERVISORS

GENERAL DIRECTORS

DEPUTY GD DEPUTY GD

In charge of Construction

In charge of Production
Technique Investment

12 technical &

10 productionunits functional departments

..................................... Affiliated Company

(*) Operating model as of December 31, 2024

2024 Annual Report GOGOOOOGOGOOOOOOCOOAIOOCOBCOGOGOIOOPOGOOAIGOGOGOGOOOOOOGOGOOOOCOOHOOOOOOOBOOOOOBOCO0000000000 HANICHEMC O 0000000000000 OOOOOOBOOOOOOOOCO0N 1O 50000



Subsidiaries, associated companies DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATIONS

Subsidiaries

Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company has no subsidiaries.

Associated companies

Affiliated Address

Company

Ha Bac Pham Lieu
. . Street, Tho
Liquefied
) Xuong Ward,
1 Gas Joint . .
Bac Giang City,
Stock .
Compan Bac Giang
bany Province

Major lines of Charter
business Capital

« Main objectives of the Company
»  Continue to promote the achievements obtained to fully leverage and maximize the brand value of HAN-
ICHEMCO, maintaining stable production, achieving economic efficiency goals, and creating high-qual-
ity, sustainable, and environmentally friendly products.
» Develop HANICHEMCO into a strong and large-scale enterprise with advanced technological capability

and modern management practices, closely integrating production and business with science, tech-
DHB's DHB's

contributed Ownership
capital Percentage capabilities.
» Build a leadership team that is resilient and professional, while developing competent management,

nology, and research and development; continuously improving corporate governance and competitive

business personnel, and expert teams.

l\:clag'or'lines - Development strategies in medium and long term
OT bUSINess
are liquid and 24.025.190.000 8.649.060.000 36% »  Medium-term development strategy: Focus on market segments for Urea fertilizer used in crop cultiva-
solid Carbon VND VND tion, adequately meeting domestic market demands and promoting exports.
Dioxide

» Long-term development strategy: Invest in research and development to enhance product quality and

OOK 2D HOOOBEOOOBOOOOOOOOOIOOOOOOOBON
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produce environmentally friendly fertilizers, aiming to become a leading enterprise in fertilizer supply
and enhancing efficiency in the agricultural production sector.
Sustainable development objectives

The Company sets its sustainable development goals based on three main pillars:
»  Accompanying and growing alongside agriculture and farmers.
»  Ensuring environmental safety, hygiene, and fire prevention in production.

»  Securing employment and improving the livelihoods of the Company’'s employees.



RISKS
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The Company's production and busi-
ness activities are directly affected by
both domestic and global economic
conditions. Factors such as slower eco-
nomic growth, high inflation, exchange
rate fluctuations, and tightened mon-
etary policies can reduce the demand
for fertilizers and chemicals, impacting
the Company's revenue and profit. Ad-

ditionally, global economic fluctuations may lead to changes in the cost of im-
ported raw materials, increasing production costs and affecting the Company's
competitiveness.

During the 2024 - 2025 period, existing risks arising from global economic
fluctuations include tightened trade policies, increased protectionism in major
export markets, supply chain disruptions caused by trade tensions and geo-
political conflicts, rising input costs, intensified competitive pressure, and risks
from energy security instability, .... Moreover, exchange rate fluctuations im-
pact the cost of imported raw materials and the valuation of exported goods.

The fertilizer and chemical manufactur-
ing industry has a relatively long capi-
tal recovery cycle, while the Company
requires significant investments in ma-
chinery, equipment, and raw material
reserves. If inventory turnover slows
down, customer debt collection is de-
layed, or the market experiences dif-
ficulties, the Company may face cash
flow shortages, affecting production

activities.

Additionally, bank loans used for production expansion investments increase
the burden of repaying both principal and interest, especially in cases of de-
clining revenue. Currently, the Company is experiencing cash flow pressure
due to debt repayment obligations under the restructuring plan with the North
Northeast Region Development Bank. Furthermore, implementing new invest-
ment plans requires long-term financial resources, necessitating efficient and
well-planned capital mobilization and utilization.

The fertilizer and chemical production
and business sectors are subject to
strict regulatory oversight by state au-
thorities. Changes in tax policies, en-
vironmental regulations, quality stan-
dards, business licensing requirements,
and emission control measures may
increase compliance costs and impact

production activities. Additionally, stricter regulations on land management, resource utilization, and environmen-
tal protection could create challenges for the Company's production expansion plans in the future.

As a publicly traded enterprise, the Company is also subject to Vietnam's stock market regulations. Any adverse
changes in these legal provisions may negatively impact business operations.

Key raw materials for fertilizer production, including natural gas, coal dust,
and auxiliary chemicals, account for a significant portion of production
costs. Among them, coal is a critical input material for fertilizer and chem-
ical production. Any shortage in supply or sharp fluctuations in raw mate-
rial prices will directly impact the Company's production efficiency.
Currently, domestic coal supply is unstable, requiring the Company to im-
port at high costs, which poses challenges in controlling product costs.
The Company'’s reliance on coal supply from the Vietnam National Coal
And Mineral Industries Holding Corporation Limited (VINACOMIN) and for-
eign suppliers also creates risks related to pricing and supply security,
particularly during geopolitical instability or changes in coal import-export
policies.

The Vietnamese fertilizer industry is facing increasingly fierce competi-
tion due to the entry of new enterprises with more advanced technology,
pressure from imported products as free trade agreements allow fertiliz-
ers from China, Russia, and Indonesia to flood into Vietnam at competitive
prices, and shifts in consumer demand as farmers transition to organic
and microbial fertilizers, reducing the use of traditional nitrogenous fertil-
izers. The Company faces intensifying and direct competition, particularly
from imported fertilizers and domestic fertilizer manufacturers, leading to
business risks related to its market share if sales policies are not timely
adjusted to align with market conditions.

Some force majeure risks beyond the Company’s control, such as natural
disasters, fires, etc., may cause damage to production and business activ-
ities and affect the Company's operational efficiency. These force majeure
risks, if they occur, can result in significant losses in assets, human re-
sources, and overall business operations. The Company can only mitigate
these risks by purchasing insurance for its assets and enhancing forecast-

ing and risk assessment efforts to minimize potential consequences.
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SITUATION OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS
OPERATIONS

I

Advantages

The decision by the Vietnam Development Bank (VDB) to write off 243 billion VND in interest on late pay-
ment interest incurred in 2024 has significantly reduced the Company's financial burden. This has improved
cash flow, eased payment pressures, and created favorable conditions for the Company to reinvest in pro-
duction and enhance business efficiency.

In December 2023, the Prime Minister approved the Company's restructuring plan, opening up opportuni-
ties to improve operational efficiency, optimize resources, and enhance financial stability. The initial results
of the restructuring process have enabled the Company to remain profitable in 2024, laying the foundation
for more stable growth in the coming years.

The National Assembly's approval of a 2% reduction in VAT for 2024 has helped businesses lower costs,
thereby increasing the Company's competitiveness in the market. This is a favorable factor, especially in the
context of significant fluctuations in raw material prices.

Despite many challenges, agriculture remains a key pillar of Vietham's economy, ensuring stable demand
for fertilizers and chemicals. The Company benefits from its long-established brand reputation, extensive
distribution network, and the ability to leverage this demand to maintain sales volume.

Challenges

In 2024, the Company faced storms, lightning strikes, and technical incidents, leading to prolonged shut-
downs for equipment repairs. This not only reduced production capacity but also resulted in increased
maintenance and repair costs, affecting production schedules and product supply to the market.

The sales process also encountered difficulties due to intense competition in the fertilizer market between
domestic and imported products. The selling prices of Urea and NH3 declined compared to the beginning
of the year and remained at low levels.

Unusual weather patterns, including storms, floods, and particularly the impact of Storm No. 3 and its after-
math, disrupted the supply of materials and goods and caused instability in the power grid.

The Vietnam National Coal And Mineral Industries Holding Corporation Limited (VINACOMIN) changed the
coal supply from coal dust grade 5a.1 to coal dust grade 5a.10 at a higher price, increasing the Company's
production costs. Since coal accounts for a significant proportion of the production cost of nitrogenous
fertilizer, this change reduced the Company's price competitiveness in the market.

Results of business operations against the plan

During the year, the Company basically achieved the targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders, as

detailed below:

2024 Plan 2024 Actual Performance
Indicator Assigned
by GMS Actual % of Plan % Compared

Achieved to 2023 Actual
.1 Budget Contribution ~~~ ~  BilionVND 749 | 695 .. 928 n79.

y Industrial Production Value Billion VND 46671 41633 89,2 08,8
.................. (Market PriCe)
I TotalRevenue ~ BilionVND 4.7204 44664 948 1009

IV Production & Business Efficiency Billion VND 168,3 6,8 41 0,8

. Total output converted to Urea

(Based on liquid NH3 production) Tons 44060  434.268 98,7 96,0
o e e Tons .......0B7A440 397658 .. 1082 ] 10,7,
2 NH3 commercial products TONS 40000 19486 . 48,7 558,
3] Electricity Production oMW 140250  134.041 .. 996 ] 892,
L SAlES VOl
. Total output converted to Urea
. (Based on liquid NH3 production) " ioaaq adossr 1S o0
L. S, Tons .......370000 407052 . 1100 99,1,
2 NH3 commercial products Tons 40.000 19.486 48,7 55,9

The Company's Production and Business Performance in 2024 recorded a profit of 6,8 billion VND, which is 161
billion VND lower than the plan approved by the GMS and 851 billion VND lower than the actual performance in
2023.
The Company's efforts in production and business activities to achieve profitability in 2024:
Effective technical management and stable technology operations ensured that key loss norms remained at
or below planned levels, resulting in savings of 60 billion VND compared to the 2024 plan.
Most materials/services were procured through direct bidding, online bidding, or competitive quotations,
contributing to a reduction of 16,8 billion VND in production and business costs.
Given that Urea selling prices were more favorable than NH3 prices, the Company intensified Urea sales,
effectively meeting domestic market demand and expanding exports to Asian countries, including South
Korea, Japan, the Philippines, Taiwan, Malaysia, Australia,India, ... As a result, the total Urea-equivalent
sales volume met and exceeded the annual target (in which Urea exports reached 117.250 tons, with a value
of 46,4 million USD, the highest of all times).

OOK. 2B XOOCOCIOOOCOIOOOOOIOOOOOOCOOK 2024 Annual Report HANICHEMC O c00000000000000000000BOOOBGBOOOOOOON DT 50000



ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCE

Board of Directors

MR. NGUYEN VAN DUNG MR. PHAM VAN TRUNG
MEMBER OF THE BOD MEMBER OF THE BOD
Year of birth: 1968 Year of birth: 1967
" Number of shares Professional qualification: Chemical Professional qualification: Economic
No. NETE Position held at the end of
period Engineer, MBA Engineer, MBA
1 Mr. Nguyen Van Thieu Chairman of the BOD 0 Number of shares representing HCVN Number of shares representing HCVN
"""" 2MrNguyenVanDung4600 Group: 54.440.000 shares Group: 54.440.000 shares
3 Mr. Pham Van Trung 4.300
4 Mr. Nguyen Dinh Hong 1.900
5 Ms. Nguyen Tuyen Anh 0
MR. NGUYEN DINH HONG MS. NGUYEN TUYEN ANH
MEMBER OF THE BOD INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE
MR. NGUYEN VAN THIEU BOD
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOD Year of birth: 1978
Professional qualification: Chemical Year of birth: 1968
; Professional qualification: Bachelor's
Year of birth: 1965 Engineer, MBA . .
degree in Economics

Number of shares representing HCVN

Professional qualification: Bachelor of Economics
Group: 54.440.000 shares

Number of shares representing HCVN Group: 102.511.000 shares

OOK DG HOOCOEOOOOCOOOOOOOCIOOOOOOCOON 2024 Annual Report HANICHEMC O 000000000000000000000BOOBOBOOOOOON DO 50000



Board of Management

MR. NGUYEN DINH HONG MR. LE ANH TUAN
DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
Name Position th d of period ] . ) ) ) o )
€ end of p Professional qualification: Chemical Professional qualification: Master’s degree

1 Mr. Nguyen Van Dung General Director 4.600 Engineer; MBA in Business and Management
2 Mr. Pham Van Trung Deputy General Director 4.300 Number of shares representing HCVN
3 Mr. Nguyen Dinh Hong Deputy General Director 1.900 Group: 54.440.000 shares
4 Mr. Le Anh Tuan Chief Accountant 0

Changes in the Board of Management

On November 1, 2024, the Company held a ceremony to announce the decision to appoint Mr.
Nguyen Van Dung as General Director. Prior to this appointment, Mr. Dung served as Deputy
Secretary of the Party Committee, Member of the Board of Directors, and Deputy General
Director of the Company.

E TAP DOAN HOA CHAT VIET NAM
“ CONG TY CP PHAN DAM VA HOA CHATHA BAC

MR. NGUYEN VAN DUNG MR. PHAM VAN TRUNG oAMHAEAG
I W CONG BO
GENERAL DIRECTOR DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR i
(Appointed as GD of the Company as of 01/11/2024) OUYET L
Year of birth: 1968 Year of birth: 1967 VA BO b
Professional qualification: Chemical Professional qualification: Economic
Engineer, MBA Engineer, MBA
Number of shares representing HCVN Number of shares representing HCVN
Group: 54.440.000 shares Group: 54.440.000 shares
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Board of Supervisors

Number of shares held at

No. Name Position the end of period Hanichemeo - V%Mﬁ%ﬂz&f‘é‘

1 Mr. Ha Xuan Han Head of the Board of Supervisors 4.900 . —

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. .m
2  Mr. Le Anh Tuan 3.000 »
3 Ms. Dang Thi Minh Ly 0 E‘

i URE HA BAC 3

i NGUYENLIEU 3

) e o 2

g

i 150 3001 201%; 14001:201% !

3 1

g DA Skt ua TR TY TP R el v W O e "

MR. HA XUAN HAN
HEAD OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Year of birth: 1964
Professional qualification: Bachelor's degree in Economics
MR. LE ANH TUAN MS. DANG THI MINH LY
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS SUPERVISORS
Year of birth: 1974 Year of birth: 1994
Professional qualification: Chemical Professional qualification: Bachelor's
Engineer, MBA degree in Law
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Human resource structure

As of December 31, 2024, the total number of employees in the Company was 1.263. Details are as follows:

Year 2023 Year 2024

Criteria
Quantity  Percentage Quantity Percentage

(people) (%) (people) (%)

| By Labor Level

1 University and Postgraduate Degree 461 37,06 465 36,82
2 College and professional intermediate level 703 56,51 718 56,85
3 Elementary and Skilled Worker 72 579 72 5,70
4 Unskilled labor 8 0,64 8 0,63

1 Male 878 70,58 900 71,20
2 Female 366 29,42 363 28,80
Total 1.244 100% 1.263 100%

Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer & Chemi-
cals Joint Stock Company always pays
attention to the rights and welfare of
employees, creating a safe, stable, and
growth-oriented working environment.

Employees of the Company are trained
at Universities, Colleges, Vocational
schools, and technical worker programs
suitable for the Company's production
and business tasks. To date, employees

of the Company have mastered technolo-

gy and assigned tasks; labor norms have

been reviewed and optimized to minimum levels; mergers and consolidations have streamlined the organiza-
tional structure, enhancing management effectiveness and efficiency in line with the actual situation of the
Company.

The Company has regulations and rules ensuring employee entitlements comply with legal provisions; in 2024,

the Company provided sufficient employment and guaranteed salaries for 100% of its officers and employees.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES,
IMPLEMENTATION

Project implementation

The total investment and construction expenditure in 2024 amounted to 9,959 billion VND, including: 9,171

PROJECT

billion VND for equipment costs and 0,788 billion VND for other expenses.

Completed projects (06 projects): 3-ton KOMASU forklifts (02 units); 29-seat passenger vehicle; 11-seat
electric Bus; 3-bowl Vibrating grinder; 7-seat passenger vehicle; automated and continuous environmental
monitoring system at the outlet of the A/O wastewater treatment station.

Ongoing investment project (01 project): Sulfur analyzer for coal (purchase contract signed).

Investment preparation stage (03 projects): Investment in a 130-ton/h boiler for the Thermal workshop;
Investment in a Bag handling system (02 Bag-stacking robots); wheel loader (bucket capacity ~0.167 m?).
The limestone grinding system project has been shifted towards upgrading and improving the existing sys-

tem and has been classified as a scientific and technical research project instead.

Operations of the subsidiaries, associated
companies

Subsidiaries: None

Associated companies

Habac Liquefied Gas Joint Stock Company

Actual 2024/

No. Indicator Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Actual 2023 (%)

1 Total assets 47945 40.635 84,8%
2 Net revenue 47.461 39.593 83,4%
3 Cost of goods sold 25.297 25.520 100,9%
4 Financial income 1.612 474 29,4%
5 Selling, administrative, and financial expenses 3.756 3.423 91,1%
6 Profit from business activities 20.050 11.137 55,5%
7 Other profit 0 0 n/a

8 Profit before tax 20.020 11.125 55,6%
9 Profit after tax 15.998 8.879 55,5%
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FI NANCIAL SITUATION Cash conversion cycle Day 46,66 31,34

Summary of Financial Situation Profitability Ratio

Growth rate e 0PN
(%) Operating profit margin % (21,41) (4,29)

Indicator Unit Year 2023 Year 2024

Total assets (as of December 31) Billion VND 6.745,9 6.247,7 -7,4% Profit after tax margin o 19 45 0,15

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... NOte. The ROEA ratl'o I’n 2023 Surged abnorma//y due tO the equity I'ndlcator Shiftl'ng from negatl've at t.he begl’n_
Profit before tax Billion VND 858,3 6,85 -99,2% ning of 2023 to positive by the end of 2023.

Payout ratio % 0 0

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE, CHANGES IN
Major financial indicators OWNER'S EQUITY

[ ] [ ]
Financial Indicator Unit Year 2023 Year 2024 Share Informathn

Liquidity Ratio

Share of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer & Chemicals
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. Share name

_...Joint Stock Company

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. Share type Common Share
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. Securitiescode DHB

............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. Par Value share fI0.000 VND/ Share
On July 26, 2017, the shares of Ha Bac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company were

officially listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX)
..under the securities code DHB.

Debt/Total assets ratio % 90,93 90,10 Listing date

Debt and financial lease liabilities/Total
assets

Number of common shares 272.200.000 shares

Number of preferred shares 0 shares

Number of floating shares 272.200.00 shares

Total treasury shares 0 shares

Number of freely transferable shares 270.896.200 shares

Day 2007 16.22 Number of restricted transferable shares 1.303.800 shares

Average payables turnover ratio Time 10,95 10,40 Treasury share transactions in 2024 None

Average payment period Day 33,32 35,11 Source: According to DHB's shareholder list as of March 24, 2025
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Other securities

In 2024, the Company did not issue other securities.

Shareholder structure

Number of Ownership Number of  Shareholder structure (person)
hare percentages shareholder T -
S (%) Institution le N7 [VE]]
.Jotal number of shares = 272.200.000  .100% ... 1280 .o 19 1261
_State shareholders () 265831000 . D766 . e e L 0.
Major shareholders
(holding 5% or more of 265.831.000 97,66% 1 1 0

shares) (*)

Treasury shares 0 0% 0 0 0

(*) The company has 1 state shareholder who is also a major shareholder

Source: According to DHB's shareholder list as of March 24, 2025

List of major shareholders

In 2024, there were no change in the ownership ratio of major shareholders in the Company. Specifically as
follows:

Business Regis-
tration Certificate/

Ownership
Number of /Charter
Shares Capital Ratio
(%)

Address (Individual Share-
holder) [ Headquarters (Insti-
tutional Shareholder)

Trading Code of
Investor

1 Vietnam National 104,06 1T 1A Trang Tien, Hoan Kiem, Hanoi  265.831.000 97.7%
Chemical Group

Source: According to DHB's shareholder list as of March 24, 2025

Changes in owner’s equity

In 2024, Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer & Chemicals Joint Stock Company had no changes in owner's equity.

ENVIRONMENT-SOCIAL-GOVERNANCE
(ESG) REPORT OF THE COMPANY

Environmental impact

Not recorded.
None.

Management of raw materials

Category of Material

Quantity Used in 2024

1 Coal dust 4B tons 0

2 Coal dust bA tons 397.768,723
3 Coal dust 4A tons 384.847,781
4 Cashew nutshell oil for boiler firing kg 65.805

5 Circulating water m3 369.735.783
6 50 kg Urea packaging (Ha Bac Urea) set 4.939.146
7 25 kg Urea packaging set 905.240

Category of Materials Quantity Used in 2024 Ratio (%)

1 Boiler ash tons 0 0%
2 Shell furnace acid residue tons 5.773.207 1,45%
3 Recovered oil liter 0

2024 Annual Report GOGOOOOGOGOOOOOOCOHIOOOOCOGOGOIOOOGOGOIIGOGOBGOGOOOOCOGOGOIOOOGOOIOOOOOOOBOOOOOOBOO0000000000 HANICHEMC O 0000000000000 OOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOON Q) 50000



Energy consumption Employee training

Total electricity consumption in 2024: 276.668.471 kWh.

Total average By employee classification
Total savings achieved through consumption norms in 2024: 60,2 billion VND, including 11,27 billion VND from training h 7 i) S s ; ;
9 g P 00, ' g raining noursiper (hours/person) Indirect employees Direct employees
coal savings and 5,6 billion VND from electricity savings. year (hours) (hours/person) (hours/person)

Average training
Every year, the Company implements energy-saving solutions such as optimizing motor operation modes to re- hours per year 373.709 230 09 280

duce power consumption and conducting scientific and technical research to lower consumption norms, reduce

production costs, and enhance production and business efficiency. In 2024, the Company continued imple-

menting the following two solutions:

»  Solution 1: A comprehensive solution for configuring protective settings to isolate the grid and maintain sta-
ble operation of the main production line in the event of a national power grid failure.

»  Solution 2: Continuing the research project of mixing Shell furnace acid residue with coal dust 5A supplied

The Company operates a modern fertilizer production line, making regular employee training essential for stable
and long-term operations. To meet this requirement, the Company annually develops training plans to enhance

to the Thermal workshop, aiming to reduce coal dust 5A consumption norms, reuse the entire amount of employees’ professional skills and expertise, specifically, the following programs:
ash from old boilers, and recycle Shell furnace acid residue that would otherwise be discharged into the » Assigning senior workers to mentor junior workers to improve their technical skills, ensuring they meet qual-
environment. ification standards for annual salary-grade evaluations according to the Company’s training regulations;

employees are also trained to operate multiple positions within the production line to expand their expertise,
H increase job flexibility, and maintain stable employment.
Water consumption . . - Co . .
- Sending employees to authorized training centers or inviting lecturers from reputable institutes and uni-
versities to provide professional training and knowledge enhancement for employees to qualify for salary

» The Company's water consumption mainly consists of circulating water (continuously recirculated increases:
I

during production), with evaporated water replenished from external sources.
»  The primary water supply comes from Thuong River, with a total consumption in 2024: 9.551.557 m3.
97,4%.

The Company regularly organizes training courses and professional development programs for employees

to improve workforce quality, ensure employment, and support career growth with the following programs:

»  Collaboration with the Technology Education Company to conduct the course "Updates on Bidding Law
No. 22/2023/QH15 and its guiding documents.”

complia nce With the Iaw on en\lironmental prOteCtion »  Collaboration with 1 Industrial Safety Inspection Training Joint Stock Company to provide occupational
safety and hygiene training for the Company’s management staff.

»  Training and professional development programs for employee promotion and salary increases.

None.

None »  Specialized professional training programs to enhance skills and expertise.

»  Cross-training and retraining programs for workforce reassignment and restructuring.

Policies related to employees

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had 1.263 employees. The average salary for employees in 2024
was 12,794 million VND per person per month, of which the average salary under the Labor contract was
8,404 million VND per person per month.

Report on responsibility for local community

The Company actively participates in community development initiatives in economic and social aspects, in-
cluding financial support programs to serve the community like: participating in advocacy campaigns, mutual
support movements, charity programs for the underprivileged, and contributing to maintaining public order and
social security in the Company's operational area

100% of employees are fully employed and covered by social insurance, health insurance, unemployment
insurance, ... as per regulations; employees receive one mid-shift meal, hazardous work allowances in kind
during production shifts, monthly fuel allowances, and personal protective equipment according to their job
positions, ...

The Company has a medical department with 08 staff members, on duty 24/24h. Report on green capital market activities
Annual health check-ups are conducted for Officers and Employees 01 time/year, while direct production
workers receive health check-ups 02 times/ year.

In 2024, the Company provided emergency hardship assistance totaling 129.400.000 VND to 526 employ-
ees; provided assistance totaling 39.200.000 VND to 64 employees to support Officers and Employees
facing iliness, accidents, retirement, or family difficulties to support and encourage Officers and Employees
in overcoming difficulties.

None
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ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS IN
2024

Operating situation in 2024 and the assessment of
the Board of Management

Hanichemeo - ﬂﬁm/gymm&m

Business results Year 2023 Year 2024 Growth rate (%)

Net Revenue 4.413,48 4.439,48 0,6%
Cost of Goods Sold 4.428,75 4.161,82 -6,0%
Gross Profit (15,27) 277,66 n/a
Financial Income 12,25 26,90 119,6%
Financial Expenses 690,36 272,94 -60,5%
- Of which: Interest Expenses 642,45 203,31 -68,4%
Selling Expenses 94,77 86,35 -8,9%
General and Administrative Expenses 156,64 135,82 -13,3%
Net Profit from Business Activities (944,80) (190,55) -79,8%
Other Profit 1.803,08 197,40 -89,1%
Total Accounting Profit Before Tax 858,28 6,85 -99,2%
Profit After Corporate Income Tax 858,28 6,85 -99,2%

In 2024, the Company's production and business activities recorded positive improvements.

Net revenue reached 4.439,48 billion VND, marking a slight increase of 0,6% compared to 2023 (4.413,48 billion
VND). Meanwhile, cost of goods sold (COGS) decreased by 6%, contributing to an improvement in the gross profit
margin. As a result, gross profit saw a strong recovery, shifting from negative 15,27 billion VND in 2023 to 277,66
billion VND in 2024. This is a positive signal, indicating that the Company has optimized production costs and im-
proved management efficiency.

Additionally, the Company experienced significant growth in financial revenue, reaching 26,9 billion VND, 2.2 times
higher than the previous year. Another notable highlight was the sharp 60.5% reduction in financial expenses, par-
ticularly with interest expenses decreasing from 642,45 billion VND to 203,31 billion VND, significantly reducing
financial pressure. At the same time, selling expenses and general administrative expenses decreased by 8.9%
and 13.3%, respectively, demonstrating the Company's effective cost control measures, which enhanced opera-
tional efficiency.

Although core business operations showed clear improvements, the Company still recorded a net loss of 190,55
billion VND, though this represents a significant reduction compared to the 944,80 billion VND loss in 2023 (de-
creased 79,8%). However, other income declined sharply by 89.1% to 197,40 billion VND, indicating that the Com-
pany no longer benefited from extraordinary income sources as in the previous year. Consequently, total profit
before tax and profit after tax both declined by 99.2%, reaching only 6,85 billion VND.

Overall, the business results in 2024 indicate that the Company is gradually recovering in its core operations,
particularly in cost control and reducing net business losses. However, the sharp decline in profit before tax due
to the absence of extraordinary income highlights the need for the Company to enhance production optimization,
improve business efficiency, and identify new growth drivers to ensure sustainable profitability in the future.
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

Assets
(Unit: Billion VND)
Indicators Year 2023 Year 2024 Growth rate (%)
Total assets 6.745,9 6.247,7 -7,4%
Current assets 1.197,2 1.280,7 7,0%
- Cash and cash equivalents 321,7 371,8 15,6%
- Short-term financial investments 18,0 48,0 166,7%
- Short-term receivables 233,2 2473 6,1%
Including: Short-term trade receivables 200,0 194,5 -2,8%
Including: Provision for doubtful short-term receivables (5,3) (5,2) -2,5%
- Inventories 606,4 539,1 -11,1%
Including: Provision for inventory devaluation - - n/a
- Other current assets 17,9 74,4 315,5%
Long-term assets 5.548,6 4.967,0 -10,5%

The total assets of the Company as of December 31, 2024, amounted to 6.247,1
billion VND, including 1.280,7 billion VND in current assets and 4.967,0 billion VND in long-term assets.

The total receivables as of December 31, 2024, amounted to 988,1 billion
VND (including 247,3 billion VND in short-term receivables and 740,8 billion VND in long-term receivables).

Regarding the Company's short-term receivables, mainly trade receivables arising from the sale of goods
and services, with some major customers having significant outstanding balances as of December 31, 2024,
including: Samsung C&T Singapore PTE LTD 49,8 billion VND; Thanh Son General Services and Trading
One-Member Co., Ltd. 33,4 billion VND; KC Ha Tinh Corporation Joint Stock Company - Central Branch 15
billion VND; Vietimex Co., Ltd. 10,1 billion VND; Thanh Nam Group Construction Investment Trading Devel-
opment Joint Stock Company 9,9 billion VND; Ha Bac Hung Phat Chemical Joint Stock Company 5,4 billion
VND; Long Bien Industrial Gas JSC 4,9 billion VND. The 54 billion VND receivable from Ngu Hoan Company
arose when the Company supplied electricity, water, and other services during the trial operation of the Ha
Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Factory Expansion and Renovation Project, increasing capacity to
500.000 tons/year. As the Project has not yet undergone A-B settlement, the Company has been unable to
collect this outstanding receivable.
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Regarding significant long-term receivables, the 740,8 billion VND receivable from Ngu Hoan Company
stems from the Company's self-settlement of the EPC contract following Clause 8, Article 4 of Circular
09/2016/TT-BTC dated January 18, 2016. This amount remains outstanding due to the contractor’s failure to
submit complete payment documentation as required by the contract, particularly for a portion of materials
used for installation work and proof of full workforce insurance coverage. The total disputed value amounts
to 34.461.194 USD. The investor has requested the contractor to submit all required documents and settle
the contract based on the agreed contract price with full supporting documentation. However, the contrac-
tor has refused, asserting that the EPC contract follows a fixed lump-sum price model.

Provision for doubtful receivables The Company has made provisions for doubtful debts, including a 5,2
billion VND provision for the receivable from Constrexim - Meco Company.

Debt Payable

(Unit: Billion VND)

Indicators Year 2023 Year 2024 Growth rate (%)
Liabilities 6.134,3 5.629,2 -8,2%
Short-term liabilities 1.080,8 1.173,6 8,6%
- Short-term borrowings and finance leases 374,0 415,3 11,0%
Long-term liabilities 5.053,5 4.455,6 -11,8%
- Long-term borrowings and finance leases 2.5151 2.369,9 -5,8%

The total liabilities as of December 31, 2024, amounted to 5.629,2 billion
VND (including short-term liabilities of 1.173,6 billion VND and long-term liabilities of 4.455,6 billion VND).
The Company's financial situation in 2024 has improved and is better than in
previous years; however, the debt repayment ratio remains at a low level.

IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND MANAGEMENT

The Company's regulations, rules, and decisions governing various aspects of its
operations continue to be reviewed and revised as a basis for directing and managing Company'’s activities.
During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed and revised the functions and responsibilities of the Human
Resources department and the Company Office.

The Company's management system continues to be
reorganized and streamlined, ensuring greater efficiency and effectiveness.
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION FOR 2025
2025 Action Plan

No.

Indicator Unit 2024 Result 2025 Plan
Key Production Indicators
‘Uresproductionvolume Tons s07658 300430

NH3 commercial products volume Tons 19.486 32.000
Key Sales Indicators

Urea sales volume Tons 407.052 390.000
NH3 commercial products volume Tons 19.486 32.000
Total revenue Million VND 4.439.477 4.607.060
Profit before tax Million VND 6.261 123.320

Main Objectives

Focus on governance and operational management of production and

business activities, striving to complete the assigned production, business, and investment plans for 2025.

To accomplish the general objectives for 2025, the Company needs to implement the following key tasks and

solutions:

The Company continues to take steps to implement investment in production-serving projects with a total in-

vestment value of 21,502 billion VND, focusing on implementing the investment project for the Bag Handling

System.

»

»

»

»

»

»
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Focus all resources and implement synchronized solutions in production management, balancing the
load to ensure safety and achieve the highest efficiency. Proactively review the entire system of equip-
ment and production lines to assess their operational status and plan timely maintenance, ensuring
continuous long-term operation.

Optimize coal blending and ensure even coal feeding for boilers and Shell gasification furnaces to sta-
bilize furnace technology and reduce coal consumption. Adjust Shell furnace technology appropriately
to extend its operating cycle.

Promote cost-saving practices in production, prevent wastefulness, reduce expenses, and lower con-
sumption norms to enhance the Production and Business Efficiency of the Company.

Closely coordinate with Bac Giang Electricity Company to ensure the safety of the Company’s power
supply corridor. Implement rooftop solar power cooperation to reduce costs, ensure a stable electricity
supply for production, lower greenhouse gas emissions, and protect the environment.

Strengthen research, updates, and apply advanced scientific and technological advancements in pro-
duction, while accelerating the integration of digital technology into production and business activities.

Regularly ensure occupational safety, hygiene, and environmental protection; conduct maintenance

2024 Annual Report

and inspections of the fire prevention and control system.

Accurately assess and forecast the impact of the input raw material market to determine and balance
the optimal timing for material procurement, ensuring it aligns with actual conditions, maintains com-
petitive purchasing prices, and guarantees quality and delivery schedules.

Procure necessary materials and spare parts to ensure stable and uninterrupted production. Strength-
en supervision and inspection of material supply and usage.

Effectively implement the Company's procurement policies for materials and goods, as well as the pro-
curement policies among internal units of HCVN Group, ensuring efficiency.

Enhance forecasting capabilities and closely monitor global price trends to adopt flexible sales policies,
improving Production and Business Efficiency. Maintain and strengthen brand promotion efforts for the
Company's products, reinforcing and sustaining the customer network. Develop detailed sales plans
on a weekly and monthly basis to proactively manage production. Flexibly structure Urea/NH3 product
sales to meet market demand while continuing to boost Urea sales for export and as a raw material for
production.

Closely monitor market trends to maintain and ensure a stable NH3 supply for customers with demand.

Balance cash flow for the Company's production and business activities and repay principal and interest
on long-term bank loans in accordance with the restructuring plan approved by the Government.
Strictly manage financial expenditures, ensuring cost savings and compliance with the Company's pol-

icies.

Review the 2025 workforce structure, rearrange, and reallocate employees to effectively support the
Company's production needs. For positions with labor shortages, continue assigning overtime work and
compensate employees according to regulations.

Implement mergers and consolidations of the Company's affiliated units to reduce hierarchical layers,
streamline operations, and enhance effectiveness and efficiency, following Resolution No. 18-NQ/TW
dated 25.10.2017, issued by the Central Committee of the Communist Party of Vietnam on restructuring
the political system's organizational apparatus.

Organize short-term training courses to enhance skills, update knowledge, and improve the profession-

al and technical expertise of the Company's officers and employees.

Implement the Company's circular economy strategy in accordance with Directive No. 14/CT-BCT dated
02.12.2024, issued by the Ministry of Industry and Trade, on promoting circular economy practices in
the industrial sector.

Continue working with the EPC contractor to resolve outstanding issues and finalize the EPC contract
and Project settlement.

Strengthen the application of digital technology in managing the Company's production and business
activities. Urgently update and upgrade the Bravo software system to improve management efficiency
and enhance business operations.

Prepare and successfully organize the 65th-anniversary celebration of the Company's establishment.
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EXPLANATION OF THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT FOR AUDITOR'S OPINIONS

Explanation of business performance changes in
2024 exceeding 10% compared to 2023

The Company's production and business performance in 2024 recorded a profit of 6.8 billion VND, a de-
crease of 851 billion VND compared to 2023. The key reasons are as follows:
At the beginning of 2024, production conditions were unfavorable due to unusual weather fluctuations, fre-
quent heat waves, and thunderstorms. In particular, multiple lightning strikes caused the Company's power
transmission lines to break, forcing the production line to shut down unexpectedly. This had a significant
direct impact on the production line equipment. When the Company worked to restore the power grid and
restart operations, equipment leaks were detected, requiring an extended shutdown for repairs in combina-
tion with a major overhaul and maintenance work. As a result, the operating time was reduced by 45 days
compared to the plan, leading to a complete halt in production during that period.
Unusual storms, typhoons, and floods, particularly Typhoon No. 3 and its aftermath, disrupted the supply
of raw materials and goods.
Input material costs, especially coal prices, remained high.
The foreign exchange loss in 2024 was 67 billion VND, an increase of 20 billion VND compared to 2023, due
to the sharp appreciation of the US dollar, which reduced the Company's production and business efficien-
cy.
Other income from the Company'’s loan restructuring plan at the Viethnam Development Bank in 2024 was
243 billion VND, a decrease of 1.559 trillion VND compared to 2023 (In 2023, the total amount recorded as
other income for the Company was 1.802 trillion VND).

Explanation of Qualified Audit Opinions

Moore AISC Auditing And Informatics Services Company Limited has issued a qualified audit opinion re-
garding the finalization of the completed project for the renovation and expansion of Ha Bac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer and Chemicals Factory.

In compliance with the directive from the Vietnam National Chemical Group regarding the completion of the
finalization process for the completed project in 2017, on December 1, 2017, the Company completed the
Final Settlement Report for the completed project of the renovation and expansion of Ha Bac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer Factory, in which the EPC contract was self-finalized.

In recent times, the Company has continued to coordinate and urge the Contractor to complete the final
settlement documentation. However, up to now, both parties have not reached an agreement on certain
outstanding issues. As a result, the A-B final settlement of the EPC contract has not been completed, and
there is not enough basis to approve the project'’s final settlement or to confirm the related liabilities with
the Contractor.

i

ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Assessment concerning the environmental
indicators

The Company consistently strives to implement environmental protection policies under the prin-
ciple of sustainable development, integrating environmental and community responsibilities into
its operations.

The Company prioritizes recycling and reusing materials while strengthening waste and wastewa-
ter treatment from production and daily activities in compliance with legal regulations. Quarterly,
Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company conducts environmental mon-
itoring and wastewater quality inspections to ensure adherence to environmental protection stan-
dards. Additionally, the Company actively promotes awareness among officers and employees,
encouraging voluntary participation and making environmental protection an non-detachable part
of the production process.



Assessment concerning the labor issues

In addition to ensuring stable income for employees, the Company's Trade Union and mass organizations con-
tinue to effectively fulfill their role in representing, protecting, and advocating for employees’ legitimate rights
and interests; coordinate with management to implement grassroots democracy regulations, provide support
for employees facing difficulties or work-related accidents; collaborate in ensuring job security, salary improve-
ments, and benefits for officers and employees.

Throughout the year, these organizations have regularly conducted inspections and monitoring of labor-related
policies, including: Salary policies, social insurance, health insurance, inspection of standards, portion sizes,
food hygiene and safety for mid-shift meals, night shift (third shift) meals, and hazardous work conditions.
Additionally, efforts continue to encourage employees to overcome challenges, fulfill their assigned tasks, and
strengthen their commitment to the Company.

Simultaneously, the Company’s unions have continued to organize and oversee cultural and sports activities,
such as the Company's Sports Festival, Swimming Tournament, Badminton Tournament, and Traditional Tennis
Tournament; regularly maintaining the activities of 22 clubs for badminton, table tennis, chess, and Chinese
chess across various units, providing a healthy and engaging recreational space, contributing to improving the
spiritual well-being of employees. The Company Trade Union has also facilitated teams of athletes to compete
in provincial and sector-wide tournaments, achieving high rankings, which not only affirms the quality of the
Company's cultural and sports movement but also enhances the HANICHEMCO brand.
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Assessment concerning the corporate responsibility
for the local community

The Company continues to prioritize social welfare efforts, in addition to directly supporting em-
ployees facing difficulties through allowances, financial assistance, medical visits, and sharing in life
events such as funerals and weddings; providing gifts to encourage elderly parents of employees, as
well as young children, ... The Company has successfully coordinated social welfare activities with
local communities in neighboring areas and certain units within Vietnam National Chemical Group.
The total amount spent on social and charitable activities during the year was nearly 941 million VND.
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ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOD ON VARIOUS
ASPECTS OF THE COMPANY'S OPERATION

Production and business performance

In 2024, the Company's production and business activities faced significant challenges due to the decline
and sustained low prices of Urea and NH3. Additionally, lightning strikes caused prolonged equipment shut-
downs for repairs, severely impacting the Company's production and business performance. Despite these
difficulties, the Board of Directors, together with the Board of Management, proactively assessed the situation,
closely monitored operations, and promptly adjusted the planned targets in line with actual conditions. They
set forth appropriate business strategies, market policies, and product directions. Along with the Company's
long-standing tradition of solidarity and perseverance in overcoming difficulties, the dedication of officers and
employees, and the support of business partners and valued shareholders, these efforts played a crucial role in
helping the Company gradually overcome challenges and largely achieve the targets set by the General Meeting
of Shareholders, as detailed below:

No. Indicator Unit 2024 Plan 2024 Actual C(r)::eplgz;an
1 Key Production Indicators
L besedoniaudNrepoducton) O 00 esaees e

- Urea production volume tons 367.440 397.658 108,2
- NH3 commercial products volume tons 40.000 10.486 48,7
2 Key Sales Indicators

[ et voume OGS ions g4 aosm 1003
- Urea sales volume tons 370.000 407.052 110,0
- NH3 commercial products volume tons 40.000 19.486 48,7
3 Total revenue billion VND 4.720,4 4.466,4 94,6
4 Profit before tax billion VND 168,3 6,85 41

As the Company still has accumulated losses, the Board of Directors has not submitted a profit distribution plan

to the General Meeting of Shareholders.

@ VINACHEM  TAP DOAN CONG NGHIEP HOA CHAT VIET NAM

HOI NGHI

TONG KET CONG TAC NAM 2024,
TRIEN KHAI NHIEM VU NAM 2025

Ha NGI, rgdy D6 thang 01.a8m 2025
el

)

Financial activities

Quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial statements are disclosed in compliance with regulations or
submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review and approval.

The Company's financial performance in 2024 has shown certain improvements, particularly with a reduc-
tion in financial cost pressures thanks to restructuring efforts.

Construction and investment activities

The total value of construction investment in 2024 reached 9,959 billion VND. In which: equipment costs
accounted for 9,171 billion VND; other costs accounted for 0,788 billion VND.

During the year, the Company successfully completed 06 projects, is continuing investment in 01 project,
and is preparing investment for 03 projects.

Specifically, the limestone grinding system project has been shifted towards renovation and upgrading the
existing system, thus it has been categorized as a scientific and technical research project.

Personnel organization and salary policy

About personnel organization: The Board of Direc-
tors has made important decisions regarding person-
nel matters within its authority; ensuring that proce- 4
dures and processes are carried out in accordance with 1B ;U
the Personnel Management Regulations issued by the . 5 ji 5= “ﬁNﬁZh i
Board of Directors, specifically: : — { ' [}
Decision on approving the planning list of Compa-
ny leadership and management personnel for the
2021-2026 period (reviewed and supplemented in
2024).
Decision on approving the planning list of Compa-

ny leadership and management personnel for the
2026-2031 period (reviewed and supplemented in 2024).
Decision on the fixed-term appointment of Mr. Nguyen Van Dung, Member of the Board of Directors and
Deputy General Director of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company, as General
Director of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company, effective from November 1,
2024.
Decision on retirement under pension benefits for Mr. Nguyen Duc Ninh, General Director of the Company,
effective from November 1, 2024.
About salary policy: The Board of Directors has reviewed, revised, and supplemented the Salary Payment
Regulations to serve as a basis for salary payments and employee benefits, ensuring compliance with legal

regulations and employee retention.
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Management of invested capital in other enterprises

Currently, the Company has two long-term investments: investment in one associate company, Ha Bac Lig-
uefied Gas Joint Stock Company, with a capital contribution of 8,6 billion VND (accounting for 36% of its
charter capital), and investment in Hung Phat Chemicals Joint Stock Company, with a capital contribution of
4 billion VND, representing 4,7% ownership of its charter capital. In 2024, Ha Bac Liquefied Gas Joint Stock
Company achieved a profit before tax of 8,9 billion VND and is expected to distribute a 30% dividend.

In 2024, the Company did not make any additional external investments.

Dam Ha Bic - Giin bi civng nhi ning

Environmental and social responsibilities

The Board of Directors consistently prioritizes sustainable production, therefore, the Company’s directives
on landscape protection and emission reduction are given special attention. In production operations, the
Company has implemented various safety and occupational hygiene measures, strictly complying with en-
vironmental protection regulations in its business activities.

In 2024, Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company carried out numerous charitable
activities and local support initiatives, demonstrating its social responsibility and strong connection with
the community. The Company's Trade Union effectively organized charitable, social welfare, and gratitude
programs, contributing to enhancing the image and brand of HANICHEMCO.

OOGOOOOBIOOOBORMIGOOROOOOOOBOOOOBOOOBOOOO00000o Pam Ha Bac
?
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ASSESSMENT OF THE BOD ON BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT'S PERFORMANCE

In 2024, the Board of Management operated in full compliance with the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors, adhering to legal regulations, the Company's Charter, and internal
policies and regulations; in performing its duties, the Board of Management consistently demonstrated high
responsibility, dynamism, creativity, and solidarity, striving to overcome challenges to achieve the best possible
results, specifically:

The Board of Management developed and implemented reasonable business and market policies.

The Company's products remained stable and of high quality, earning trust and preference from both do-

mestic and international customers.

The resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors were seriously executed by the Board of Manage-

ment.

The Company's financial situation and expenditures were well-controlled, preventing any financial losses

for the Company.

Effectively implemented salary and bonus policies while ensuring comprehensive employee welfare; the

working environment for employees continued to improve.

PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF THE BOD
Forecast for 2025

I

Advantages

The Company's restructuring plan, approved by the Politburo in 2023, will contribute to reducing financial
costs for the Company.

The Value-Added Tax (VAT) Law, passed by the National Assembly, will classify fertilizers as taxable goods
with a 5% VAT rate, effective from July 2025, helping ease difficulties for fertilizer manufacturers.

The fertilizer market outlook is positive, with Urea and NH3 prices expected to recover and increase in line
with global trends. The Company will be able to supply NH3 to units with high demand.

The brand and reputation of "HANICHEMCQO" continue to earn trust and support from domestic farmers.
The Company's strong network of loyal customers, who have always stood by the Company, will help it over-
come difficulties and challenges.

Challenges and difficulties

In 2025, the Company is expected to face multiple challenges and difficulties, including:
Global and regional political conflicts remain unpredictable, causing volatile raw material prices, with coal
prices expected to stay high.

Unstable power grid systems affect production scheduling and operational efficiency.

The Renovation - Expansion Project, after more than 10 years of operation, has experienced equipment-re-

lated issues, leading to production disruptions.
These difficulties and challenges also present an opportunity for the Company to enhance management effi-
ciency, reduce costs, stabilize and strengthen market position, and improve overall production and business
efficiency.

Development orientation

Indicator 2025 Production and Business Plan

1 Key Production Indicators

- Urea production volume tan 390.430
- NH3 commercial products volume tons 32.000

2 KeySaleshndicatos

- Urea sales volume tons 390.000
- NH3 commercial products volume tons 32.000
3 Total revenue million VND 4.607.060
4 Profit before tax million VND 123.320

Tasks of the Board of Directors in 2025

Strengthen management, direction, and supervision of the Company's operations in all fields;

Enhance financial oversight, review and cut unnecessary expenditures, aiming to reduce costs, lower pro-
duction expenses, and improve market competitiveness.

Supervise and direct the Board of Management to ensure safe, stable, and high-load production operations
with efficiency, while implementing synchronized measures to reduce costs and consumption norms, con-
tributing to improving production and business efficiency.

Maintain traditional markets while expanding into new ones, boost sales of raw material Urea, premium Urea,
and liguid NH3; continue researching differentiated new products to increase sales volume and business
efficiency.

Continue refining regulations and policies as a foundation for directing, managing, and overseeing all as-
pects of the Company's operations to strengthen management, reduce costs, especially for input materials
used in production.

Continue restructuring and reorganizing production and production management towards a streamlined
approach, reducing subordinate units, and enhancing operational effectiveness and efficiency.

Strengthen training programs, review personnel planning, and develop a high-quality workforce to meet
future demands.

Ensure occupational safety, fire prevention, and environmental protection, while maintaining industrial hy-
giene, waste management, and landscape improvement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Information about the members of the BOD

Number Ownership
Organization/ of shares percentages of

Position hold at other
companies

No. Individual PESilem 260 e owned at voting shares

Name el L the end of at the end of
the period the period

- Chairman of the Board of Di-
rectors of Binh Dien Fertilizer

Mr. Nguyen . 0 Joint Stock Company

! Van Thieu Chairman of the BOD 0 0% - Deputy Director in charge of

the Ninh Binh Fertilizer Project

....................................................................................................................................................................................... Management Board .
5 Mr. Nguyen Member of the BOD, 4.600 0,0017% None

............... R T o oo oL o,
3 Mr. Pham Van Member of the BOD, 4.300 0,0016% None

............... TTUNG o DB Y O Al D OO 0T ettt
4 Mr. Nguyen Member of the BOD, 1900 0,0007% None

Dinh Hong Deputy General Director

Ms. Nguyen Independent Member of Deputy General Director of Ha
Tuyen Anh the BOD Anh Export Import JSC

Members numbered from 1 to 4: Representatives of the major shareholder, the Vietnam National Chemical
Group, with a total ownership ratio of 97,66% of charter capital.

Members numbered 2, 3, and 4: Executive members of the Board of Directors.

Members numbered 1 and 5: Non-executive members of the Board of Directors.

At the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, Resolution No. 02/NQ-DHDCD dated 24.04.2024, ap-
proving the dismissal of 02 BOD members for the 2021-2026 term, Mr. Nguyen Phung Hung and Mr. Nguyen
Duc Ninh. At the same time, Mr. Nguyen Dinh Hong and Ms. Nguyen Tuyen Anh were additionally elected as
BOD members for the remaining duration of the 2021-2026 term.

The committees of the BOD

Not yet established

Activities of the BOD

Number of Meetin
Member of the BOD meetings attendancegrate Reason for absence
attended
1 Mr. Nguyen Van Thieu 12/12 100%
. From January 1, 2024, to April 24
0, 1 1 1
2 MeNawenbuefmh K OO 2024,the BOD held 05 meetings.
3 Mr. Pham Van Trung 112 92 Due to urgent matters, absence was
. 0

requested and approved.

Due to urgent matters, absence was
requested and approved.

From April 24, 2024, to December 31,
2024, the BOD held 07 meetings.

From April 24, 2024, to June 30
] 1 1 1
JMs. Nguyen Tuyen Anh 6/7 86% 2024, the BOD held 07 meetings.

In 2024, the Board of Directors successfully convened and organized the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 24, 2024.

Additionally, the BOD held 12 meetings, conducted 17 rounds of voting among its members; issued 15 resolu-
tions and 27 decisions to regulate the Company’s activities. The agenda, participation, and proceedings of the
BOD meetings were conducted in strict compliance with the Company's charter and the Law on Enterprises. The
meetings aligned with the orientations set forth in the General Meeting of Shareholders’ resolutions and the actual
situation of the Company for implementation.

The BOD's members actively coordinated and supported the management of production and business operations,
regularly delegating Board members to represent and participate in meetings with the Board of Management to
review reports on organizational and business activities. During these meetings, they provided direct guidance,
aligned on directives, and made necessary decisions. As a result, the BOD consistently maintained an up-to-date
understanding of the Company’s operations. All Resolutions and Decisions issued by the BOD were made with a
high degree of consensus and approval from its members.

In 2024, the Board of Management carried out its executive duties in strict compliance with the Resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the BOD, adhering to legal regulations, the Company's Charter, and internal
policies. Throughout their work, they demonstrated a high sense of responsibility, dynamism, creativity, and soli-
darity, striving to overcome difficulties and achieve the best possible results, specifically:
The Board of Management introduced appropriate business mechanisms and market policies.
The Company's products remained stable and of high quality, earning trust from both domestic and interna-
tional customers.
The implementation of resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors was carried out rigorously by the
Board of Management.
The Board of Management exercised strict control over the Company's financial situation and expenditures,
ensuring no financial losses.
Effectively implemented wage and bonus policies while ensuring comprehensive care for employees’ well-be-
ing; the working environment for employees continued to improve.

Activities of the BOD independent members

As of December 31, 2024, Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company had one Indepen-
dent Board Member, Ms. Nguyen Tuyen Anh. In 2024, the Independent Board Member fulfilled the assigned duties
with diligence and a high sense of responsibility, demonstrating independence in management and supervision
through inspections, reports, meetings, and working sessions with the Board of Management as well as during
BOD meetings.

Training courses on Corporate governance

The members of the BOD of the Company have undergone training in the Chemical Industry Business Director pro-
gram, as well as professional training courses organized by the Company and the Vietnam National Chemical Group.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATIONS AND
BENEFITS OF THE BOD, BOM, AND BOS

Information about members of the BOS

The list of members of the Board of Supervisors is as follows

Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits in the year

Number of Ownership percentage

Position

shares holding (%) Unit: Million VND

17 Mr. Ha Xuan Han Dedicated Head of the BOS 4900 0,0018%
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. . Full Name Position at the Company Salary Remuneration Bonus Total
2 Mr. Le Anh Tuan Member of the BOS 3.000 0,0011%
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. I. Remuneration of the Board of Directors; salaries of the BOM and management staff
3 Ms. Dang Thi Minh Ly Member of the BOS 0 D% B ettt e e s st s AR R bR RS R AR R e S R SRR SRS RS e RS RS R SRR SRR AR RS R R AR R SRR RO R SRR RS R RO SRS R RS RS R R RS RO R R SRS SR SRR SRR SRR AR RS ahRSRRS SRS SRR SRR RS R R0 A8

o o.0 f h Member of the BOD (from Jan-
Activities of the BOS > Nguyen Duc Ninh U3y 2024 until April 23, 2024); 25307 241 66 3635
General Director (retired from
November 1, 2024)

Member of the BOD; Appointed

Member of the BOS Number of meetings Attendance Voting Reason for 3 Nguyen Van Dung as General Director from Novem- 3296 57,6 10,6 3978
attended rate percentage  absence ber 1, 2024
1 Mr. Ha Xuan Han 2/[2 100% 100% 4 Pham Van Trung Member of the BOD, Deputy GD 321,8 57,6 10,6 390,0
2 Mr. Le Anh Tuan 2/2 100% 100% . Member of the BOD (since April
5 """""" Nguye”D'nhHong242024)DeputyGD3057 ______________________ 3 35 ____________ 106 """""""" 3498
H H 0, 0,
3 Ms.Dang ThiMinh Ly 2/2 100% i 6 Le Anh Tuan Chief Accountant 293,6 10,6 304,2

Member of the BOD (since April
24, 2024); Deputy GD of Ha Anh

7 Nguyen Tuyen Anh ; 33,5 5,0 38,5
Export Import Joint Stock Com-
In addition to regular activities as stipulated by the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter, the Board of pany
Supervisors has undertaken the following tasks: MemberoftheBOD(fromJan_ ....................................................................................................................

Supervised the activities of the BOD and the Board of Management in implementing the Resolutions of the uary 2024 until April 23, 2024);

Nguyen Phung

General Meeting of Shareholders: 8 Hung Head of Labor Qrganizatioq 241 7,6 31,8
. . . . . . . Department - Vietnam Apatit
Coordinated with various departments within the Company to inspect the production and business opera- Limited Company

tions, management of production and business costs, and the Company’s executive operations;

Monitored the Company’s production and business activities in 2024 as Well @S The 0PEratioNs Of @SSOCIATEA et ss s 2o ss s 55221214505 e
companies; 1 Ha Xuan Han Head of the Board of Supervisors 293,6 10,6 304,2
Maintained regular communication with the BOD and the Board of Management, continuously updating in. s MemberoftheBOSOfﬂcerat ....................................................................................................................

formation to propose and recommend solutions for corporate governance and operational management of the Inspection Commission of

2 Dang Thi Minh Ly . . 46,8 10,6 57,4
the Company's production activities. the Party Comm|tt§e of Vietnam
......................................................................... National Chemical Group e
3 Le Anh Tuan Member of the BOS; Deputy 468 106 57,4

Head of Production Engineering

The coordination and exchange of information between the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors,
and the Board of Management are regularly maintained through various forms, including meetings, direct

. . . The remuneration above includes: Remuneration for concurrently held positions in the BOD and Board of Su-
discussions, and written exchanges.

In the meetings of the Board of Directors and the executive briefings of the Board of Management the Board ERiisors of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company and Remuneration for the rep-

of Supervisors is always present to enhance the quality and independence of supervisory activities. During resentatives of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company's capital at other enterprises.

these meetings, the Board of Supervisors has provided input within the scope of its functions and authority.
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Stock transactions of insiders and related parties of
insiders

Beginning Shares Ending Shares Reason for

Owned Owned Increase/
Decrease

(Purchase, Sale,
Conversion,
Bonus, ...)

Relationship

with internal
shareholders Number Number

of Percentage of Percentage
Shares Shares

Transaction

Executor

Ms. Nguyen Tuyen

Ha Anh Ex- )
ort Import Anh is the Deputy
1 Po! P General Director of 100.200 0,0368%  449.500 0,1651% Purchase shares
Joint Stock
Ha Anh Export Import
Company

Joint Stock Company

Contract or Transactions between the Company and its
affiliated persons or between the Company and its major
shareholders, internal persons and affiliated persons

Resolution/
Decision
Transaction No. of the Transaction
Timing with AGMS/ details,
the BOD (if quantity, and
Company applicable, total value
specify
issue date)

NSH No*,
Institution Relationship Date of Headquarters

No. /Individual with the Issue, [Contact
Name company Issuing Address
Authority

Approval of the
transaction con-
tract between Ha
Bac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer and
Chemicals Joint

Being a Re- Group 3, Dong Stock Company
Ha Anh Ex lated Person Anh Town, From June — 51/NQ and Ha Anh Ex-
port Import . 4,2024,t0 HDBQT )
1 . of an Insider Dong Anh port Import Joint
Joint Stock 0101328911 . = . December dated June
of the Com- District, Hanoi Stock Company.
Company . 31,2024 10, 2024 L
pany City The signing and

execution period
of the transac-
tion contracts

is from June 4,
2024, to Decem-
ber 31, 2024.

IMPROVING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Assessing the implementation of regulations on corpo-
rate governance

The Company has fully implemented and complied with legal regulations on corporate governance and

information disclosure applicable to large-scale public companies. Information disclosure is consistently

carried out in a timely manner, covering both periodic and extraordinary disclosures as required.

The Corporate Governance Officer regularly updates regulatory changes issued by the State Securities
Commission, Stock Exchange, and other relevant authorities, providing timely consultation to the Board
of Directors to ensure appropriate preparation and strict implementation in the Company'’s internal gover-
nance.

The Company Charter, Internal Governance Regulations, Board of Directors’ Operating Regulations, and
Board of Supervisors' Operating Regulations have been formulated in strict compliance with prevailing legal
regulations, ensuring the protection of shareholder rights.

Improve the efficiency of corporate governance

To meet the requirements of sustainable development and improve competitiveness, Ha Bac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company has identified innovation and governance efficiency improve-
ment as a key priority for the upcoming period. The Company is focused on developing a modern, transpar-
ent, and professional governance system that ensures legal compliance while enhancing the efficiency of
production and business operations.

First, the Company is accelerating the application of digital technology and automation in production man-
agement and operations, optimizing resources, increasing productivity, and reducing costs. At the same
time, the corporate governance system is being strengthened with an advanced management model that
enhances strategic planning capabilities, improves financial and risk oversight, and increases operational
efficiency. Additionally, the Company is committed to enhancing the quality of its management personnel
through structured training programs, building a visionary, resilient, and highly skilled leadership team.
Furthermore, the Company continues to refine its transparent governance mechanisms, strengthen ac-
countability, and establish strict internal control procedures to minimize risks, optimize capital utilization,
and reinforce trust among shareholders and investors. Strengthening collaborations and partnerships with
strategic domestic and international partners is also a key initiative to expand market reach and enhance
business performance.

With a governance strategy that prioritizes professionalism, transparency, and efficiency, Ha Bac Nitroge-
nous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company aims for strong future growth, establishing a solid foun-
dation for sustainable development while maximizing value for shareholders, employees, and stakeholders.

Bac Giang, March 28, 2025

Nguyen Van Dung
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HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

The Board of Management of Habac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company has the honor of

submitting this Report together with the audited Financial Statements for the Jfinancial year ended 31 December 2024.

1. Business highlights

Establishment:

Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") is an
enterprise equitized from a 100% state-owned company, that was Habac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals One
Member Limited Liability Company, from 01 January 2016. The Company operates under the first Business
Registration Certificate No. 2400120344 dated 21 December 2006 issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment of Bac Giang Province, the 14th amended certificate on 06 November 2024.

Form of ownership:
Joint Stock Company

The Company's business activities:
Producing and trading chemical products and fertilizers, specifically: Urea fertilizer, NH3, CO2, industrial gas
products, electricity, etc.

Transacti . - ; ;
SECRLIARE Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

in English
In short: HANICHEMCO
Listing code: DHB

Head office: Tran Nguyen Han Street, Tho Xuong Ward, Bac Giang City, Bac Giang Province

- Financial position and results of operation

The Company's financial position and the results of its operation during the period are presented in the
accompanying financial statements.

. Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Board of Management and Chief Accountant

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Board of Management and Chief Accountant during the
period and at the date of the financial statements include:

Board of Directors

Mr.  Nguyen Van Thieu Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Duc Ninh Member Resigned on 24/4/2024
Mr. Pham Van Trung Member

Mr. Nguyen Van Dung Member

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Hong Member Appointed on 24/4/2024
Mr. Nguyen Phung Hung Member Resigned on 24/4/2024
Ms.  Nguyen Tuyen Anh Member Appointed on 24/4/2024

Mr. Dang Xuan Thuy
Board of Superviors

Mr. Ha Xuan Han

Ms. Dang Thi Minh Ly

Mr. Le Anh Tuan
Board of Management and Chief Accountant

Mr. Nguyen Duc Ninh

Mr. Nguyen Van Dung

Mr. Pham Van Trung

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Hong

Mr. Le Anh Tuan

In charge of administration

Head of the Board of Superviors
Member
Member

Retirement on 01/11/2024
Appointed on 01/11/2024

General Director
General Director
Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director
Chief Accountant

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4.

Legal representatives of the Company during the period and to the date of the financial statements:

MTr. Nguyen Van Dung General Director

Independent Auditor

MOORE AISC Auditing and Informatics Services Company Limited has been appointed as an independent auditor
for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

Responsibility of the Board of Management
The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, its results of operation and cash flows for the
financial year then ended. In order to prepare these Financial Statements, the Board of Management has considered
and complied with the following matters:

- Selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently;

- Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- Prepared the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Company will continue in business.
The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept and maintained which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and that the Financial
Statements are prepared in compliance with the accounting regime stated in Notes to the Financial Statements. The
Board of Management is also responsible for safeguarding the Company’s assets, and hence taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities.

Confirmation

The Board of Management, in their opinion, confirmed that the Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet as
at 31 December 2024, the Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement and accompanying Notes, which expressed a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as well as its operating results and cash flows for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024,

Nguyen Van Dung

General Director
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Emphasis of matter

M o O R E AI SC MOORE AISC Auditing and Informatics
Services Company Limited
3B9A Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 4

District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
No. B0524073-R/MOOREAISHN-TC Viet Nam

T (B428) 38329129
F (B428) 3834 2957
E info@aisc.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT www.aisc.com.vn
To: Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of Management
Habac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

In Note V.9, the Company has temporarily recorded and depreciated the tangible fixed assets of the Ha Bac
Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant Renovation and Expansion Project under the completed project finalization report
prepared by the investor on 01 December 2017,

In Notes IV 8, V.11, the Company records the suspended depreciation expenses of the year 2017, 2018, 2019 on the
Long-term prepaid expenses - Code 261 on the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024,

Ho Chi Minh City, 03 March 2025

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Habac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock
Company as prepared on 03 March 2025 from pages 05 to 37, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 December ]

2024, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Management i

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and :
prevailing regulations applicable to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and also for the

internal control which the Board of Management considers necessary for the preparation and fair presentation of the NGUYE “FHT PHUONG PHAN CONG VAN

Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Deputy Director Kiiditr

Responsibility of the Auditor Audit Practising Registration Certificate No. 4945- Audit Practising Registration Certificate No. 5298-2021-
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 2024-005-1 005-1

in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical Issued by Vietnam's Ministry of Finance Issued by Vietnam's Ministry of Finance

standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the Financial
Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial
Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including an assessment of the risks of l
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of |
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of
Management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements. I

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

- The Company recorded the original cost and depreciated the fixed assets of the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer
Plant Renovation and Expansion Project based on the completed project finalization report prepared by the investor
on 01 December 2017 when there was insufficient A-B finalization of packages 10, 14, 8 and the consulting contract
to check the completion construction documents with contractors and approval of the completion finalization by the
competent authority. This resulted in liabilities on the foreign contractors and other liabilities (see details in notes
V.3; V.5; V.12; V.16 and VIIL.1)

Based on the evidence obtained and other alternative audit procedures, we do not have sufficient basis to confirm
the existence and completeness of the aforementioned liabilities, as well as potential liabilities that may arise in the
future related to the finalization of the above-mentioned project.

Auditor’s qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in “Basis of qualified opinion™ paragraph, the Financial
Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, on the financial position of Habac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024 as well as its operating results and cash
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting Regime and other relevant statutory requirements related to preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements.

Branch in Ha Noi: 6th floor, 38 Hoa Binh 4 Str., Minh Khai Ward, Hai Ba Trung Dist., Ha Nai City T: (84.24) 3782 0045 F: (B4.24) 3782 0048  E: hanoi@aisc.com.vn
Branch in Da Nang: 350 Hai Phong Str., Chinh Gian Ward, Thanh Khe Dist., Da Nang City T. (84.236) 374 7619 F:(84.236) 374 7620  E: danang@aisc.com.vn
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HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 01 - DN
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
ASSETS Code Notes 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 1,280,654,453,806 1,197,217,623,498
1. Cash and cash equivalents 110 V.1 371,815,496,069 321,675,669,771
1. Cash 111 371,815,496,069 321,675,669,771
II. Short-term financial investments 120 V.2 48,000,000,000 18,000,000,000
l. Held-to-maturity investments 123 48,000,000,000 18,000,000,000
III. Short-term receivables 130 247,334,172,387 233,221,559,009
1. Short-term trade receivables 131 V.3 194,518,231,831 200,035,369,805
2. Short-term prepayments to suppliers 132 V.4 37,973,043,906 18,432,123,924
3. Other short-term receivables 136 V.5 20,053,233,712 20,098,402,342
4. Provision for short-term doubtful receivables 137 V34,5 (5,210,337,062) (5,344,337,062)
IV. Inventories 140 V.7 539,114,396,425 606,416,719,831
1. Inventories 141 539,114,396,425 606,416,719,831
Y. Other current assets 150 74,390,388,925 17,903,674,887
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 V.lla 5,677,546,358 5,463,108,399
2. Deductible value added tax 152 68,712,842,567 10,754,647,734
3. Taxes and other receivables from the State 153 V.14 0 1,685,918,754
B. LONG-TERM ASSETS 200 4,967,010,492,705 5,548,647,382,535
L. Long-term receivables 210 740,804,017,963 740,804,017,963
1. Other long-term receivables 216 V.5 740,804,017,963 740,804,017,963
II. Fixed assets 220 3,544,838,254,694 4,064,082,996,807
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 V.9 3,544,838,254,694 4,062,847,912,136
- Cost 222 9,842,734,235,963 9,819,220,986,616
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (6,297,895,981,269)  (5,756,373,074,480)
2. Intangible fixed assets 227 V.10 0 1,235,084,671
- Cost 228 13,226,611,293 13,226,611,293
- Accumulated amortization 229 (13,226,611,293) (11,991,526,622)
ITI. Long-term assets in progress 240 V.8 92,343,894,458 71,809,337,198
1. Long-term work in progress 241 33,552,540 33,552,540
2. Construction in progress 242 92,310,341,918 71,775,784,658
V. Long-term financial investments 250 V.2 13,218,878,465 13,218,878,465
1. Investments in joint ventures, associates 252 9,662,812,368 9,662,812,368
2. Equity investments in other entities 253 3,556,066,097 3,556,066,097
VI. Other long-term assets 260 575,805,447,125 658,732,152,102
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 V.11b 575,805,447,125 658,732,152,102
TOTAL ASSETS 270 6,247,664,946,511 6,745,865,006,033
Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this report 5
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HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 01 - DN
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
RESOURCES Code  Notes 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
C.  LIABILITIES 300 5,629,212,667,649 6,134,258,143,777
I Current liabilities 310 1,173,591,345,018  1,080,764,573,583
1. Short-term trade payables 311 V.12 386,144,351,853 414,511,282,093
2. Short-term advances from customers 32 V.13 117,549,295,214 9,071,721,825
3. Taxes and payables to the State 313 V.14 500,166,207 1,112,279,092
4. Payables to employees 314 45,049,252,495 70,064,940,205
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 V.15 576,813,743 8,998,258,018
6. Other short-term payables 319 V.16a 208.448,097,686 202,936,667,471
7. Short-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 320 V.l7a 415,263,223,306 374,004,949,047
8. Bonus and welfare fund 322 60,144,514 64,475,832
IL Long-term liabilities 330 4,455,621,322,631 5,053,493,570,194
1. Other long-term payables 337 V.16b 2,085,715,122,631 2,538,419,080,194
2. Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities 338 V.17b 2,369,906,200,000 2,515,074,490,000
D. OWNERS’ EQUITY 400 V.19 618,452,278,862 611,606,862,256
I. Owners' equity 410 618,452,278,862 611,606,862,256
1. Owners' contributed capital 411 2,722,000,000,000 2,722,000,000,000
- Common shares with voting rights 411a 2,722,000,000,000 2,722,000,000,000
2. Undistributed profit after tax 421 (2,103,547,721,138)  (2,110,393,137,744)
- Undistributed praofit after tax 5
accumulated to the end of the previous period Lle (2,110,393,137,744)  (2,968,677,588,834)
- istribut ]
m— L 4215 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
current period
TOTAL RESOURCES 6,247,664,946,511 6,745,865,006,033 5
Nguyen Thi Hong Nhung Le Anh Tuan Nguyen Van Dung
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

Bac Giang, 03 March 2025

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this report



HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 02 - DN
INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
1. Revenue from goods sold and services rendered 01 VI.1 4,439,477,098,072 4,413,475,970,445
2. Revenue deductions 02 0 0
3. Net revenue from goods sold and services rendered 10 4,439.477,098,072 4,413,475,970,445
4. Cost of goods sold 11 V1.2 4,161,818,996,381 4,428,747.705,041
5. Gross profit from goods sold and services rendered 20 277,658,101,691 (15,271,734,596)
(20=10-11)
6. Financial income 21 VI3 26,898,387,016 12,246,233,322
7. Financial expenses 22 VIi4 272,936,421,195 690,364,050,440
In which: Interest expenses 23 203,307,955,862 642,445,738,924
8. Selling expenses 25  VI5a 86,347,980,481 94,768,244,03 1
9. General and administrative expenses 26 VI.5b 135,824,364,153 156,638,227,377
10. Net profit from operating activities 30 (190,552,277,122) (944,796,023,122)
(30=20+(21-22)-(25+26))
11. Other income 31 V1.6 248,982,692,225 1,803,845,265,031
12. Other expenses 32 VL7 51,584,998,497 764,790,819
13. Other profit (40 = 31 - 32) 40 197,397,693,728 1,803,080,474,212
14. Total accounting profit before tax 50 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
(50 =30 + 40)
15. Current Corporate income tax expense 51 VL9 0 0
16. Profit after Corporate income tax 60 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
(60 =50 - 51-52)
17. Basic earnings per share 70 VLI10 25.15

3,153.14
gl

Nguyen Thi Hong Nhung
Preparer
Bac Giang, 03 March 2025

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this report

Le Anh Tuan
Chief Accountant

Nguyen Van Dung

General Director

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 03 - DN
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Under indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Profit before tax 01 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
2. Adjustments for:
" . . 02 V.90 626,674,030,149 624,767,388,163
- Depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties
- Provisions 03 (134,000,000) 0
- Gamsa’_losses from forfj‘lgn ef(chang.e dlﬁ'erent'ies upon . 67.667.275.146 47,558,939.282
revaluation of monetary items in foreign currencies
- Gains/losses from investing activities 05 (6,879,249,927) (8,983,445,949)
= ]_ntcres[ expense 06 VI.4 203,307,955,862 642,445,738,924
3 Pruﬁ't from c?peraling activities before changes in 08 $97,481,427,836 2,164,073,071,510
working capital
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in receivables 09 (76,945,856,939) 59,200,704,924
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in inventories 10 67,302,323,406 240,943,050,661
< JORIANE () deGiEig (1) T PRpubiy JURKC BN 4 (420,259,550,735)  (1,760,922,188,908)
interest payables, income tax payable)
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in prepaid expenses 12 (1,360,767,775) 17,849,618,387
- Interest expense paid 14 (203,668,168,862) (233,668,733,275)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 262,545,075,613 487,475,523,299
11. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
L Purchase and construction of fixed assets and other long- 21 (45,500,014,919) (9.724,189.483)
term assets
5 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other long- 2 232,933,333 0
term assets
3. Loer?s granted, purchases of debt instruments of other 23 (30,000,000,000) 0
entities
Collection of loans, proceeds from sales of debt
4. instruments of other entities 24 0 15,000,000,000
5. Proceeds from loan interest, dividends and profit received 27 6,248,371,388 8,737,615,812
g ; g 30 (69,018,710,198) 14,013,426,329
Net cash flows from investing activities
8

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this report



HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 03 - DN

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Under indirect method)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
ITEMS Code Notes Year 2024 Year 2023

IT1. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

L. Proceeds from borrowings 33 1,890,182,696,271 1,650,153,340,205
2. Repayments of principal 34 (2,034,721,862,012) (2,035,282,588,604)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 (144,539,165,741) (385,129,248,399)
Net cash flows in the year (50 =20+ 30 + 40) 0 48,987,199,674 116,359,701,229
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 60 321,675,669,771 207,176,087,962
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 61 1,152,626,624 (1,860,119,420)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
70 V.1 371,815,496,069 321,675,669,771

70 = 50+60+61
( ) a&m?,,f

Nguyen Thi Hong Nhung Le Anh Tuan Nguyen Van Dung
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director
Bac Giang, 03 March 2025

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this report ]

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND

I. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

1. Establishment:

Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") is an
enterprise equitized from a 100% state-owned company, that was Habac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals One Member
Limited Liability Company, from 01 January 2016. The Company operates under the first Business Registration Certificate
No. 2400120344 dated 21 December 2006 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Bac Giang Province, the
14th amended certificate on 06 November 2024.

Form of ownership:

Joint Stock Company

2. Business sector:

The Company's business sector is industrial production.

3. Business lines

Producing and trading chemical products and fertilizers, specifically: Urea fertilizer, NH3, CO2, industrial gas products,
electricity, etc.

Tisoaachomnamel Habac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company

English

In short: HANICHEMCO

Listing code: DHB

Head office: Tran Nguyen Han Street, Tho Xuong Ward, Bac Giang City, Bac Giang Province

4. Normal operating cycle

Normal operating cycle of the Company lasts 12 months of the normal fiscal year beginning from 01 January and ending on
31 December annually.

5. The Company's operations in the financial year affecting the Financial Statements:

None.

6. Total employees as at 31 December 2024: 1,263 persons.

(4s at 31 December 2023: 1,238 persons)

7. Enterprise's structure

List of joint ventures and associates
As at 31 December 2024, the Company has one (01) associate as follows:

Principal business Capital contribution

. : Volnavi ;
Name and address activiiy B Ownership ratio oting rights ratio
Habac Liquefied Gas Joint Production and "

; .00% .00?
Stock Company trading of CO2 S0 v AR IR

8. Disclosure on the comparability of information in the Financial Statements:

The selection of figures and information needs to be presented in the Financial Statements based on the principles of
comparability among corresponding accounting periods.

II. ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND REPORTING CURRENCY

1. Financial year

The Company’s accounting period begins on 01 January and ends on 31 December annually.

2. Currency unit used in accounting

Vietnamese Dong (VND) is used as a currency unit for accounting records.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 10




HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 09 - DN

Unit: VND

I1I. APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIME

L Applicable accounting regime

The Company applies the Vietamese Corporate Accounting Regime as guided in Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22
December 2014 and Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by the Ministry of Finance on amending and
supplementing a number of articles of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC.

2. Disclosure of compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Regime

We conducted our accounting, preparation, and presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards and System and other relevant statutory regulations. The Financial Statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and the results of its operations as well as its cash flows.

The selection of figures and information presented in the notes to the Financial Statements complies with the material
principles in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 21 - "Presentation of the financial statements".

1V. APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Types of exchange rates applied in accounting

The Company converts foreign currencies into Vietnam Dong based on actual exchange rates and book rates.
Principles for determining actual exchange rates

All transactions denominated in foreign currencies that arise during the period (trading foreign currencies, capital
contribution or receipt of contributed capital, recording receivables and payables, purchasing assets or expenses immediately
paid by foreign currencies) are converted at the actual exchange rates ruling as of the transaction dates.

Closing balance of monetary items (cash, cash equivalents, payables and receivables, except for prepayments to suppliers,

advances from customers, pre-paid expenses, deposits and unearned income) denominated in foreign currencies should be
revalued at the actual rate ruling at the balance sheet date.

Principles for determining book rates

When recovering receivables, deposits, collaterals or payments for payables in foreign currencies, the Company uses

specific identification book rate.

When making payments in foreign currencies, the Company uses a moving weighted average rate.
2. Principles for recording cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits.

Cash equivalents comprise term deposits, short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less since
investment date, high liquidity and are able to convert to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

3. Principles for accounting financial investments
Principles for accounting held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost, including the purchase price and costs associated with the
acquisition of the investments. After initial recognition, if provisions for doubtful debts have not been made as required by
law, these investments are evaluated at their recoverable values. When there is firm evidence that part or all of the
investment may not be recovered, the loss is recognized as financial expenses during the year and a decrease in the

investment value.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND

3. Principles for accounting financial investments (continued)

Principles of recording financial investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates
The investments in subsidiaries are recognized when the Company holds more than 50% of voting rights and has the power

to govern the financial and operating policies in order to obtain economic benefits from the subsidiaries’ operation. When
the Company ceases to control the subsidiaries, the investment in the subsidiaries will be written down.

The investment in joint ventures is recorded when the Company holds joint control over these entities' financial and
operating policies. When the Company ceases to control these entities, the investment will be written down.

The investments in associates are recognized when the Company holds from 20% to less than 50% of the voting rights of
those companies and has considerable influence over their decisions on the financial and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates are initially recognized at cost and will not be adjusted thereafter for
changes in investors’ share of net assets of the investee. The original cost comprises purchase cost and directly attributable
expenses to the investment. In a case where the investment is a non-monetary investment, the investment fee is recognized
under the fair value of these assets at the date of occurrence.

Provision for loss of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates is made when the investee suffers from loss
leading to possible loss of capital of investor or the value of the investments is impaired. The basis for making provisions is
based on the consolidated financial statements of the investee (if it is a parent company), and the investee's financial
statements (if it is an independent enterprise without subsidiaries).

. Principles for recording trade receivables and other receivables

Principle for recording receivables: At the original cost less provision for doubtful debts.

The classification of the receivables as trade receivables, internal receivables and other receivables depends on the nature of
the transaction or relationship between the company and the debtor.

Method of making provision for doubtful receivables: Provision for doubtful debts is estimated for the loss value of the
receivables, other held-to-maturity investments similar to doubtful debts that are overdue and undue, but are likely to
become possibly irrecoverable due to insolvency of debtors who go bankruptcy, making procedures for dissolution, go
missing or run away, etc.

. Principles for recording inventories:

Principle of recording inventories: Inventories are stated at cost less (-) the provision for the devaluation and provision for
obsolete and deteriorated inventories.

The costs of inventories are determined as follows: ' .
- Raw materials, tools and instruments: consist of purchase cost, transportation cost and other directly attributable costs in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

- Finished products: include the costs of raw materials, direct labor, and related manufacturing overheads, which are
collected based on the actual costs incurred for each production stage.

- Work in progress: includes the cost of direct raw materials, direct labor, and manufacturing overheads incurred during the
production process.

Method of calculating inventories' value: Weighted average cost

Accounting for the inventories: Perpetual method

Method of making provision for the devaluation of inventories: Provision for the devaluation of inventories is made when
the net realizable value of inventories is lower than their original cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less
the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Provision for the devaluation of inventories is the difference between
the cost of inventories greater than their net realizable value. Provision for the devaluation of inventories is made for each
inventory with the cost greater than the net realizable value.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 12



HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 09 - DN Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND

6. Principles for recording and depreciating fixed assets 8. Principles for recording prepaid expenses

6.1 Principles for recording tangible fixed assets The Company's prepaid expenses are all expenses incurred but related to the operating result of several accounting periods,

Tangible fixed assets are stated at the original cost less accumulated depreciation. The original cost of a tangible fixed asset

comprises all expenditures of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. The expenditures
incurred after initial recognition are only capitalized if they generate future economic benefits from the use of those tangible
fixed assets. The expenditures which do not meet the above conditions are charged to the expenses in the period.

When the assets are sold or disposed of, their original costs and the accumulated depreciation which have been written off,
and any gain or loss from the disposal of assets are recorded as income or expense during the period.

Determination of original cost in each case;

Tangible fixed assets purchased

The original cost of purchased tangible fixed assets shall consist of the actual purchase price (less (-) trade discounts or
reduction), taxes (excluding taxes to be refunded) and relevant expenses calculated to the time when such fixed assets are
put into operation such as fees for installation and trial operations, specialists and other direct costs.

The original cost of fixed assets formed from capital construction under the mode of tendering shall be the finalization price
of the construction project, other relevant fees plus registration fee (if any).

Fixed assets are buildings, and structures attached to land use rights, the value of land use rights is computed separately and
recorded as intangible fixed assets.

6.2 Principles for recording intangible fixed assets:

Intangible fixed assets are stated at the original cost less accumulated amortization. The original cost of an intangible fixed
asset comprises all costs incurred by the enterprise to acquire that asset from the date of its operation as expected.

Determination of original cost in each case:
Computer sofiware

Computer software includes all expenses the company incurred to obtain software for use.

The Company's prepaid expenses include the following expenses: Insurance costs (fire and explosion insurance, car

insurance, property insurance, etc.); tools and instruments; fixed asset repair costs; prepaid land rental fee; business
advantages; suspended depreciation costs, etc.

Method of allocating prepaid expenses: The determination and allocation of prepaid expenses into the operating cost of each
period is on a straight-line basis. Based on the nature and level of each expense, the term of allocation is defined as follows:
short-term prepaid expenses should be allocated within 12 months; Long-term prepaid expenses should be allocated from 12
months to 36 months. Particularly, business advantages upon equitization are allocated for 10 years; depreciation costs will
be suspended for 2 years (for assets with the remaining useful life less than or equal to 2 years) and allocated according to
the remaining useful life (for assets with remaining useful life over 2 years).

9. Principles for recording liabilities

Liabilities are recorded at the original cost and not lower than the payment obligation.

The Company classifies liabilities into trade payables, internal payables and other payables depending on the nature of
transactions and the relationship between the Company and debtors.

Liabilities must be recorded in detail according to the payment schedule, creditor, original currency (including the
revaluation of liabilities that meet the definition of monetary items denominated in foreign currencies) and other factors as
per the Company’s management

At the reporting date, if it is evident that there is an unavoidable loss, an amount payable will be immediately recorded under
prudent principles.

10. Principles for recording borrowings

Borrowings are total amounts the Company owes to banks, organizations, financial companies and other objects (excluding
borrowings under the form of bond or preferred stock issuance which require the issuer to repurchase at a certain time in the
future).

Borrowings are monitored in detail for each creditor, loan agreement and borrowed asset.

6.3 Method of depreciating fixed assets 11. Principles of recording and capitalizing borrowing costs:
Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Useful life means the duration in which Principles for recording borrowing costs: Loan interest and other costs incurred in direct relation to borrowings of an
the tangible fixed assets produce their effect on production and business. enterprise are recognized as a business and production cost in the period, except where these costs incurred from the
Estimated usefil lives of the fixed assets are as follows: borrowings directly related to the construction investment or production of uncompleted assets are computed in these assets'
value (capitalized) when they satisfy conditions stipulated in the VAS No. 16 "Borrowing costs".
Factories and structures 5-25 years P . . : — ; : 5 i
. _ .y The capitalization rate is used to determine the borrowing costs capitalized during the period: In the case of joint
Machinery and equipment - 15 years borrowings involving construction investment purposes or the production of an unfinished asset, the amount of borrowing
Means of transportation 6 years costs eligible for capitalization in each accounting period is determined based on the capitalization rate for the weighted
Intangible fixed assets 3 - 8 years average accumulated costs incurred for the construction investment or production of that asset. The capitalization rate is
Based on Notice No. 947/HCVN-TCKT dated 24 May 2017 of Vietnam Chemical Group, specifically as follows: calculated based on the weighted average interest rate of the loans outstanding during the period. Borrowing costs
) . : capitalized must not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred during that period.
- In 2017, the Company depreciated fixed assets by 40% under the straight-line method,;
-In2018 and 2019, the Company depreciated fixed assets by 50% under the straight-line method. 12 Trinciples forirecording accrued expenses
8.0 : p ” Accrued expenses include loan interest expenses... incurred during the reporting period but have not yet been paid out.
The company records the suspended depreciation costs in the "Long-term prepaid expenses" on the Balance Sheet. P P ; 5 PAFING P ye P
These expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates of the amounts payable under contracts, and agreements,...
To REETET I F NN CURaN T PRI 13. Principles for recording provisions for payables:
Construction in progress is recorded at cost. This cost includes all costs necessary to newly purchase fixed assets, build or Provisions for payables are only recognized when the following conditions are met: the Company has a present
repair, renovate, expand or re-equip technical works such as construction costs; equipment costs; compensation, support and obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
resettlement costs; project management costs; construction investment consulting costs and other costs. benefits will be required to settle the obligation; And value of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
. The amount recognized as a provision for payables should be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
This cost is carried forward to increase asset value when the project is completed, the assets are handed over and put into a present obligation at the balance sheet date.
ready-to-use state. Provision for payables includes provisions for periodic repair and maintenance of fixed assets (as per technical
requirements).
These notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis 13 These notes are an integral part aof the financial statements 14
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16. Principles and methods of recording cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold reflects the cost of products, services, sold during the period and other costs recorded in cost of goods
sold or recorded as reductions in cost of goods sold in the reporting period. The cost of goods sold is recorded at the date the
transaction incurs or is likely to incur in the future regardless of whether payment has been made or not. The cost of goods
sold and revenue shall be recorded simultaneously on the matching principle. Expenses exceeding normal consumption
levels are recorded immediately to the cost of goods sold on a prudent principle.

14. Principles for recording owners' equity

Principles for recording owners' contributed capital:

The owner's contributed capital is the amount that is initially contributed by members and supplemented from the
shareholders. The owners' equity will be recorded at the actually contributed capital by cash or assets in the early
establishment period or additional mobilization to expand the operation.

Principles for recording undistributed profit:

Undistributed profit after tax is recorded at the profit (loss) from the Company's result of operation after deducting (- the
current corporate income tax expense and the adjusted items due to the retroactive application of changes in accounting
policy and adjustments for material misstatement of the previous years.

17. Principles and methods for recording financial expenses

Financial expenses include: Lending and borrowing costs; Provision for impairment of financial investments, losses from
selling foreign currencies, Foreign exchange losses and other financial expenses.
Financial expenses are recorded in detail for each expense incurred in the period and determined reliably when there is

The distribution of profits is based on the Company's charter and approved by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting. reliable evidence of these expenses.

18. Principles and methods for recording current Corporate income tax expense

15. Principles and methods for recording revenues and other income ; y ]
Corporate income tax includes current corporate income tax and deferred corporate income tax incurred in the year, which

Principles and methods for recording revenue from goods sold sets a basis for determining operating results after tax in the current fiscal year.

Revenue from the sale of goods should be recognized when all five (5) following conditions have been satisfied: 1. The Current Corporate tax expense is the tax payable on the taxable income and tax rate enacted in the current year.
enterprise has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 2. The enterprise retains
neither continuing managerial involvement as an owner nor effective control over the goods sold; 3. The amount of revenue
can be measured reliably; When the contract specifies that buyers are entitled to return products, goods they have bought
under specific conditions, the enterprise will record the revenue only when those conditions no longer exist and the buyers
do not have right to return products, goods (except for changing to other goods, services) 4. The economic benefits
associated with the transaction has flown or will flow to the enterprise; 5. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of

the transaction can be measured reliably.

The tax payables to the State budget will be finalized with the tax office. The difference between the tax payables specified
in the book and the tax amounts under finalization will be adjusted when the tax finalization has been issued by the tax office.

19. Principles for recording basic earnings per share

Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to common shareholders, after deducting
the Bonus and Welfare Fund established during the period, by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding

' . during that period.
Principles and methods for recording revenue from services rendered ' .
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing profit or loss after tax attributable to common shareholders (after adjusting for

dividends on preferred convertible shares) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period
and the weighted average number of the common shares will be issued in the case where all dilutive potential common are
converted into common shares.

Revenue from a service rendered is recognized when the transaction results can be measured reliably. In a case where the
services are rendered in several periods, the revenue will be recorded by the part of completed works at the end of the
period. Revenue from services rendered is recognized when all four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied
simultaneously: 1. The revenue is determined firmly. When the contract specifies that buyers are entitled to return the
service they have bought under specific conditions, the enterprise will record the revenue only when those conditions no
longer exist and the buyers do not have the right to return the service; 2. The economic benefits associated with the
transaction have flown or will flow from the supply of the provided service; 3. Part of completed works can be determined at
the balance sheet date; 4. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

If the contract result cannot be determined reliably, revenue will only be recognized at the recoverable amounts of the
recognized costs.

20. Financial instruments

Initial recognition:
Financial assets

According to Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC dated 06 November 2009 (Circular No. 210) by the Ministry of Finance,
financial assets are classified properly, for the purpose of presentation in the financial statements, into the financial assets
which are stated at fair value through the Income Statement, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and

. o available-for-sale financial assets, The Company decides to classify these assets at the date of initial recognition.
Principles and methods for recording financial income

Financial income reflects income from interest, distributed dividends and profits, and other financial income (foreign change
gains), etc.

Revenue from interest, royalties, distributed dividends and profit is recognized when both of the two following conditions
are satisfied: 1. It is possible to obtain benefits from the transaction; 2. Revenue is determined with relative certainty.

At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are recognized at cost plus directly related transaction costs.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash, short-term deposits, trade receivables and other receivables, listed and
unlisted financial instruments and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities
- Interest income is recognized based on the time and actual interest rates in each period.

- Royalties are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with agreements.

- Dividends and profits distributed are recorded when shareholders are entitled to receive dividends or capital contributors
are entitled to receive profits from capital contribution.

When an amount that has been recorded as an income becomes irrecoverable, such irrecoverable or uncertainly recoverable
amount must be recorded as an expense incurred in the period, but not recorded as an income decrease.

Financial liabilities under Circular 210, for financial statement disclosure purposes, are appropriately classified into financial
liabilities recognized through the Income Statement and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. The Company
determines the classification of financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at cost plus directly related transaction costs.

Financial liabilities of the Company comprise trade payables, other payables, borrowings and liabilities and derivative
financial instruments.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 15 These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 16
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20. Financial instruments (continued) 2. Financial investments

Value after initial recognition :;i:;':;:rm aniis] 31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Currently, there are no requirements for the re-measurement of the financial instruments after initial recognition.

Cost Book value Cost Book value
Olfssitlug ot il isfapanss 1. Sl 48,000,000,000 48,000,000,000 18,000,000,000 18,000,000,000
. . 4 & T . t-t L] s 3 L] ] ] E] L] 3 s L] L]

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the report on financial position if, and only e © .

if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the financial assets against financial liabilities or vice-versal and there \ - Term deposits (*) 48,000,000,000 48,000,000,000 18,000,000,000 18,000,000,000

is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. , Total 48,000,000,000 48,000,000,000 18,000,000,000 18,000,000,000
21. Related parties 1

‘ . . .
Related parties include enterprises and individuals that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or 3 (*) Term deposits in detail as of December 31, 2024
are under control of the Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power Y Contract No. Balance Term Interest rate Maturity date

of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel such as Board of

: . i ; Viet Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Bac Giang Branch
Directors, Board of Management and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these BN R Y g

individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the HDTG280/2019/15293 8,000,000,000 06 months 2.90% 11/3/2025

substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form. HDTG280/2021/22746 10,000,000,000 12 months 4.20% 22/7/2025
22. Presentation of assets, revenue and results of operation by segment HDTG280/2024/67809 15,000,000,000 06 months 3.80% 25/1/2025

Business segment includes segment based on business sector and on geographical area. HDTG280/2024/669347 15,000,000,000 06 months 3.80% 7/2/2025

A business segllnent is a distinguishable component of tl'ue Company fengag_ed in pn:oduction or in providing an individual Total 48,000,000,000

product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other business segments. Deposit contracts at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Bac Giang Branch are used as

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Company engaged in production or providing products or collateral to issue guarantees and open Letters of credit.

services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
components operating in other economic environments.

Because the company's operations primarily focus on producing and trading fertilizers in Bac Giang province, the company
does not prepare segment reports by geographical area and business sector.

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE INTERIM BALANCE SHEET

1. Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Cash 371,815,496,069 321,675,669,771
Cash on hand 3,725,588,904 4,733,275,554
Demand deposits 368,089,907,165 316,942,394,217

a. Demand deposits in Vietnamese Dong

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade — Bac
Giang Branch

Joint Stock Commercial Bank For Foreign Trade Of Vietnam - Tay Ho
Branch

Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Bac Giang Branch
Other banks
b. Demand deposits in foreign currency (USD)

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade — Bac
Giang Branch

Other banks
Total

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements

125,641,227,639

137,826,813,684

79,544,148,778 77,757,183,576
20,167,403,466 3,542,388,829
21,200,365,843 27,764,222,112
4,729,309,602 28,763,019,167
242 448,679,476 179,115,580,533
242,341,481,358 159,472,248,224
107,198,118 19,643,332,309
371,815,496,069 321,675,669,771
17

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
4. Prepayments to suppliers 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
a. Short-term 37,973,043,906 0 18,432,123,924 0
Yueyang  Dongtian
Petrochemical Co.,Ltd, 26,367,604,217 0 10,505,783,174 0
China
Hong Phuc Material and
Buipticiit o, Lt 6,167,604,000 0 0 0
Hao Thien Dai Duong
Engineering Services 310,122,230 0 2,754,299,690 0
and Equipment Co., Ltd
Hexun Material and
Economy Trading Co., 0 0 1,757,947,755 0
Ltd of Nanning, China
Others 5,127,713,459 0 3,414,093,305 0
Total 37,973,043,906 0 18,432,123,924 0
5. Other receivables 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
a. Short-term 20,053,233,712 (5,210,337,062) 20,098,402,342 (5,344,337,062)
Constrexim-MECO Joint
Stock Company -
Advance payment for 5,210,337,062 (5,210,337,062) 5,210,337,062 (5,210,337,062)
site clearance of the
resettlement project.
Other receivables related
to liabilities of Fertilizer
R S —" 4,654,692,143 0 4,654,692,143 0
Expansion Project
Receivables for
Bijchg, Copaingon 2,701,391,102 0 2,701,391,102 0
costs for pipeline
390,395
Others 7,486,813,405 7,531,982,035 (134,000,000)
b. Long-term 740,804,017,963 740,804,017,963 0
Receivable from EPC
contractor, package 8 -
Ha hae Nikogeons 740,804,017,963 0 740,804,017,963 0
Fertilizer Plant
Renovation and
Expansion Project (¥)
Total 760,857,251,675 (5,210,337,062) 760,902,420,305 (5,344,337,062)

(*): Adjustment to decrease the original cost of fixed assets of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant Renovation and
Expansion Project (See Note V.9)

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements

21

Form B 09 - DN

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Unit: VND

01/01/2024

31/12/2024

6. Bad debts

i .. Recovers:
Provision Recoverable amount Cost Provision rable

Cost

amount

- Total value of receivables, loans that

(5,344,337,062)

5,344,337,062

(5,210,337,062) 0

5,210,337,062

are overdue or not overdue but unlikely

to be recovered

Stock

Company -Advance payment for site
clearance of the resettlement project.

Constrexim-MECO  Joint

(5,210,337,062)

5,210,337,062

0

(5,210,337,062)

3,210,337,062

(134,000,000)

134,000,000

0

People's Committee of Tran Nguyen

Han Ward

22
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND
7. Inventories 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Raw materials 519,918,637,465 0 488,687,422,241 0
Tools, instruments 469,867,445 0 443,452,851 0
Work in progress 15,964,483,881 0 20,306,728,918 0
Finished products 2,761,407,634 0 96,979,115,821 0
Total 539,114,396,425 0 606,416,719,831 0

All inventory is mortgaged under short-term loan contract No. 01/2024-HDCVHM/NHCT280-DHB dated 4 July 2024 of
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Bac Giang Branch.

Long-term assets in

8. 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
progress
Value Provision Value Provision
e 33,552,540 0 33,552,540 0

progress
= Reacarch io hmploment 33,552,540 0 33,552,540 0
CA topic

p, Camsteuction i 92,310,341,918 0 71,775,784,658 0
progress
- Resettlement project (*) 70,873,660,448 0 70,873,660,448 0
- 130 tons/h steam boiler
investment project- 11,310,909 0 11,310,909 0
Thermal Workshop
- Limestone grinding
s e 10,987,963 0 10,987,963 0
project - Thermal
workshop
e Sl 21,414,382,598 0 879,825,338 0
fixed assets
Total 92,343,894,458 0 71,809,337,198 0

(*) The project is being undertaken by the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Joint Stock Company, with a
total investment of 87 billion Vietnamese Dong. The capital source is collected from land use fees when allocating land
for resettlement but the Company advanced for implementation. The project is located in Tho Xuong Ward, Bac Giang
City, Bac Giang Province, and aims to resettle people affected by Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant Renovation and
Expansion Project. As of now, the project has been basically completed and is awaiting final settlement.

These notes are an integral part of the financial staiements
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9. Tangible fixed assets
Items Buildings, structures Mac!uncry, Vacaug of_ Total
equipment transportation

Original cost (*)

Opening balance 2,037,571,475,009 7,750,930,160,294 30,719,351,313 9,819,220,986,616
Complete construction 2,948,013,644 15,217,853,630 0 18,165,869,274
Purchased duri,

rchaned during: the 0 0 6,799,588,385 6,799,588,385
period
Disposals, resales 0 0 (1,452,208,312) (1,452,208,312)

Closing balance 2,040,519,490,653 7,766,148,013,924 36,066,731,386 9,842,734,235,963

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 918,372,912,943 4,810,739,129,616 27,261,031,921 5,756,373,074,480
Depreciated for the year 69,497,588,009 472,431,060,346 1,046,466,686 542,975,115,101
Disposals, resales 0 0 (1,452,208,312) (1,452,208,312)

Closing balance 987,870,501,012 5,283,170,189,962 26,855,290,295 6,297,895,981,269

Net book value

Opening balance 1,119,198,562,066 2,940,191,030,678 3,458,319,392 4,062,847,912,136

Closing balance 1,052,648,989,641 2,482,977,823,962 9,211,441,091 3,544,838,254,694

10.

(*) The original cost of fixed assets includes the value of fixed assets of the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant Renovation
and Expansion Project. This project has been temporarily recorded as an increase in fixed assets since April 2015 with a
total cost of VND 9,578,015,411,146. In 2017, based on the completed project finalization report prepared on 01 December
2017, the Company adjusted to decrease the original cost of fixed assets formed from this project by VIND 731,345,834,964,
the new original cost was determined to be VND 8,846,669,576,182 and depreciated the fixed assets under the new original
cost. The reduced value is mainly associated with the materials and equipment of package 8 implemented by Wuhuan
Engineering Co., Ltd, so the Company recorded the receivable from the contractor. Currently, the Company is waiting for
approval of completion finalization from the competent authority, and the lack of A-B finalization may lead to a contractual

dispute with the contractor.

- In which:

+ Net book value of tangible fixed assets used as mortgage or pledge to secure loans: VND 3,526,309,223,586.
+ QOriginal cost of tangible fixed assets at the end of the year fully depreciated but still in use: VND 918,634,004,746.

Intangible fixed assets

Items

Original cost

Opening balance

Closing balance

Accumulated amortization

Opening balance
Amortization for the year

Closing balance

Net book value

Opening balance

Closing balance

Computer software

Total

13,226,611,293
13,226,611,293

13,226,611,293
13,226,611,293

11,991,526,622

11,991,526,622

1,235,084,671 1,235,084,671
13,226,611,293 13,226,611,293
1,235,084,671 1,235,084,671
0 0

* Original cost of intangible fixed assets at the end of the period fully amortized but still in use: VND 13,226,611,293.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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11. Prepaid expenses 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Short-term prepaid expenses 5,677,546,358 5,463,108,399
Insurance costs 3,771,776,209 3,649,621,730
Others 1,905,770,149 1,813,486,669
Long-term prepaid expenses 575,805,447,125 658,732,152,102
Business advantages when equitizing 18,835,350,028 37,670,700,057
Land rental fee (*) 52,413,103,238 54,022,307,654

Fixed assetd iation i ded under Noti ; -
Tlé;;]-asse epreciation is suspended under Notice No. 947/ HCVN, 484.255,807,694 566,719,638,071
Major fixed assets repair cost 20,053,784,534 0
Others 247,401,631 319,506,320
Total 581,482,993,483 664,195,260,501

(*) According to Notice No. 163/TB-STC dated 7 August 2015 of the Department of Finance of Bac Giang province and
documents determining the land rental fee to be offSet against compensation and site clearance cost of the Ha Bac
Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant Renovation and Expansion Project by the Tax Department of Bac Giang province, the
amount of VND 65,613,266,507 will be deducted from the annual land rental fees of the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer
Plant Renovation and Expansion Project in Huong Man village - Xuan Huong commune - Lang Giang district and 02 land
lots in Tho Xuong ward - Bac Giang city until 2058. At 31 December 2024, the remaining site clearance amount is offset
against the project's land rental fee is VND 52,413,103,238.

12. Trade payables

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

Value Recoverable amount

Value Recoverable

amount

a. Short-term
Wuhuan Engineering
Co., Ltd (*)
Vietnam National Coal
& Mineral Industries
Holding Corporation
Limited
Hoang Gia Trading &
Service  Company
Limited
THAHUSA Group Joint
Stock Company

Ha Long Investment
Co., Ltd

DANKA Minerals Joint
Stock Company

Payable to other
suppliers related to the
Ha Bac Nitrogenous
Fertilizer Plant
Renovation and
Expansion Project

Others

386,144,351,853

235,876,130,842

70,144,912,245

20,904,085,125

15,711,522,750

15,228,241,875

0

2,476,959,000

25,802,500,016

386,144,351,853
235,870,130,842

70,144,912,245

20,904,085,125

15,711,522,750

15,228,241,875

0

2,476,959,000

25,802,500,016

414,511,282,093

225,664,114,513

129,266,744,720

4,124,224,500

18,135,406,608

4,048,922,302

33,271,869,450

414,511,282,093

225,664,114,513

129,266,744,720

4,124,224,500

18,135,406,608

4,048,922,302

33,271,869,450

Total

386,144,351,853

386,144,351,853

414,511,282,093

414,511,282,093

(*) This is payable to contractor related to the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant Renovation and Expansion Project.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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12. Trade payables (continued)
b. Trade payables to related parties

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Recoverable amount Value Revayverbls
amount
Vietnam Institute of -
Fndusiital Chenmisiry 358,930,000 358,930,000 2,696,540,000 2,696,540,000
Total 358,930,000 358,930,000 2,696,540,000 2,696,540,000
13. Advances from customers 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
a. Short-term 117,549,295,214 9,071,721,825
Thuy Ngan Trading Company Limited 27,145,500,000 0
Toan Van General Trading Joint Stock Company 18,850,780,941 0
Cuong Lien Agricultural Materials Company Limited 17,367,100,000 0
Bac Giang Fertilizer Export Import Joint Stock Company 13,135,807,383 0
Duc Giang Lao Cai Chemicals Limited Company 0 3,713,845,300
Huynh Thanh Manufactoring Service and Trading Company Limited 0 1,172,402,952
Hai Phong Agricultural Material and Construction Joint Stock Company 0 1,170,600,000
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company 0 46,600,000
Others 41,050,106,890 2,968,273,573
Total 117,549,295,214 9,071,721,825
b. Advances from customers from related parties
Lam Thao Fertilizers and Chemicals Joint Stock Company 0 46,600,000
Total 0 46,600,000
14. Taxes and payables to the State
01/01/2024 Payables in the year Paid in the year 31/12/2024
a. Payables
Output VAT 0 123,780 123,780 0
VAT on imported goods 0 3,802,442,342 3,802,442,342 0
Import and export tax 324,736,000 53,381,160,050 53,705,896,050 0
Personal income tax 343,089,204 2,804,215,846 3,099,941,113 47,363,937
Natural resources tax 68,535,900 1,284,060,195 1,205,912,655 146,683,440
Housing fo et Land 0 7,228,933,593 7,228,933,593 0
rental fee
Business license fee 0 3,000,000 3,000,000 0
Reoe. shargasand othe 375,917,988 1,603,963,005 1,673,762,163 306,118,830
payables
Total 1,112,279,092 70,107,898,811 70,720,011,696 500,166,207
b. Receivables
Land rental fee 1,685,918,754 1,685,918,754 - -
Total 1,685,918,754 1,685,918,754 - -
These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 26
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15. Accrued expenses 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
a. Short-term 576,813,743 8,998,258,018
Interest expense 554,659,849 914,872,849
Others 22,153,894 8,083,385,169
Total 576,813,743 8,998,258,018
16. Other payables 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
a. Short-term
Trade union fees 462,403,256 1,010,624,685
Loan interest payable to Vietnam Development Bank - North Northeast
Atéa Brasich (*) 130,000,000,000 130,000,000,000
P to Vietnam Nati ical fi
ayable to Vietnam National Chemical Group for proceeds from 1,693,506,388 5.289.270,000

liquidation of unused materials when equitization
Materials are warehoused but not yet recorded as liabilities
Payables to resettlement project costs (**)

Funding source for resettlement project granted (*)

Payables related to the self-settlement of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer
Plant Renovation and Expansion Project.

Others
Total

. Long-term

Loan interest payable to Vietnam Development Bank - North Northeast
Area Branch (¥)

Long-term deposits and collaterals
Collection of land use fees for the resettlement project (**)
Total

. Other payables from related parties
Payable to Vietnam National Chemical Group for proceeds from
liquidation of unused materials when equitization

Total

31,368,869,800
1,911,956,217
2,803,991,000

35,151,624,197

5,055,746,828

14,054,845,152
1,911,956,217
2,803,991,000

35,151,624,197

12,714,356,220

208,448,097,686

202,936,667,471

2,015,355,825,646

2,388,202,596,753

3,549,496,985 83,406,683,441
66,809,800,000 66,809,800,000
2,085,715,122,631 2,538,419,080,194
1,693,506,388 5,289,270,000
1,693,506,338 5,289,270,000

(*) The interest payable to Vietnam Development Bank - North Northeast Area Branch has its interest payment term
adjusted under the amended and supplemented Contract No. 02/2023/HDTDDT-NHPT dated 21 December 2023.

(**): Amounts collected to implement resettlement investment construction project for Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer

Plant Renovation and Expansion Project

- The above amounts are used to cover the technical infrastructure construction cost and are monitored in the construction
in progress of about VND 70.9 billion; other receivables are about VND 1.9 billion. The difference between

income/expenditures will be finalized with the State.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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374,004,949,047
374,004,949,047
274,004,949,047
100,000,000,000
2,515,074,490,000
2,515,062,000,000
1,344,475,000,000
1,170,587,000,000
12,490,000
12,490,000
2,889,079,439,047

Recoverable amount

01/01/2024

Value
374,004,949,047
374,004,949,047
274,004,949,047
100,000,000,000
2,515,074,490,000
2,515,062,000,000
1,344,475,000,000
1,170,587,000,000
12,490,000
12,490,000
2,889,079,439,047

12,490,000
12,490,000

Decrease
1,948,924,422,012
1,948,924,422,012
1,845,924,422.012

103,000,000,000

243,045,990,001
243,033,500,001
143,033,500,001
100,000,000,000
2,191,970,412,013

During the year
0

Increase

1,990,182,696,271

1,990,182,696,271
1,872,724,926,784
17,457,769,487
100,000,000,000
97,877,700,001
97,877,700,001
97,877,700,001
2,088,060,396,272

amount
415,263,223,306
415,263,223,306
300,805,453,819
17,457,769,487
97,000,000,000

Recoverable
2,785,169,423,306

2.369,906,200,000
2,369,906,200,000
1,299,319,200,000
1,070,587,000,000

31/12/2024

Value
415,263,223,306
415,263,223,306
300,805,453,819

17,457,769,487
97.,000,000,000
2,369,906,200,000
2,369,906,200,000
1,299,319,200,000
1,070,587,000,000
2,785,169,423,306

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial

Bank for Industry and Trade
Long-term borrowings from Banks

Vietinbank - Bac Giang Branch and

co-financing banks (3)
Vietnam Development Bank - North

Long-term borrowings due to date
Northeast Area Branch (4)

Vietnam (BIDV) - Kinh Bac Branch

(Vietinbank) - Bac Giang Branch (1)
(2

Investment and Development of

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Long-term borrowings from

b. Long-term borrowings
_individuals

Borrowings from staff

Short-term borrowings from Banks
Total

a. Short-term borrowings

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
These notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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17. Borrowings and finance lease liabilities (continued)

Borrowings from banks in detail:

31/12/2024 Loan purpose Secured assets

Balance as at

Credit limit

Interest rate

Term

Contract No.

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade (Vietinbank) - Bac Giang Branch (1)

The Company's entire

inventory,

Serving the production Tran Nguyen Han

300,805,453,819 and trading of Urea,

address:

As per each
indebtedness

Loan Limit Contract No.

From 04/07/2024 to

380,000,000,000

01/2024/HDCVHM/NHCT280-

DHB dated 04/07/2024

Street, Tho Xuong

04/07/2025

Ammonia, CO2

certificate

Ward, Bac Giang City

and

customer

receivables

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam (BIDV) - Kinh Bac Branch (2)

and

Machinery, equipment,

As per each
indebtedness

Credit contract No.

buildings,
architectural objects

13
487 ayment for coal and

From 15/11/2023 to

17,457,769,

17,457,769,487

0101/2024/413162/HDTD dated

15/11/2024

transportation costs.

15/03/2025

(line 1) are owned by

the Company

certificate

Vietinbank - Bac Giang Branch and co-financing banks (3)

Investment of Ha Bac

Assets formed from

Nitrogenous Fertilizer

loan capital

Plant Renovation and

50.850.000 USD

192 tridu USD

4,5%/year

Until 2031

Credit contract No. 01.68/HDTD

ngay 06/8/2010

Expansion Project

1,299,319,200,000

VND converted
Vietnam Development Bank - North Northeast Area Branch (4)

Investment of Ha Bac

Credit contract No.
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2,785,169,423,306

Total
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18. Owners' equity
l a. Reconciliation table of changes in Owners' equity
Owners' Undistributed
I Kiema contributed capital Profit after tax sital
Previous year opening balance 2,722,000,000,000 (2,974,183,682,269) (252,183,682,269)
l Profit 0 858,284,451,090 858,284,451,090
Other increases 0 5,506,093,435 5,506,093,435
I Previous year closing balance 2,722,000,000,000 (2,110,393,137,744) 611,606,862,256
Current year opening balance 2,722,000,000,000 (2,110,393,137,744) 611,606,862,256
Profit 0 6,845,416,606 6,845,416,606
I Current year closing balance 2,722,000,000,000 (2,103,547,721,138) 618,452,278,862
I b. Owners' contributed capital in detail Capital ‘;‘;‘t‘i:‘b““"“ 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Vietnam National Chemical Group 97.66% 2,658,310,000,000 2,658,310,000,000
Other shareholders 2.34% 63,690,000,000 63,690,000,000
l Total 100.00% 2,722,000,000,000 2,722,000,000,000
c. Capital transactions with owners and
2024 Y 202
I distribution of dividends, profit Ve Sy ke
Contributed capital of owners 2,722,000,000,000 2,722,000,000,000
At the beginning of the year 2,722,000,000,000 2,722,000,000,000
l Capital increase during the year 0 0
Capital decrease during the year 0 0
I At the end of the year 2,722,000,000,000 2,722,000,000,000
d. Shares 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
l Number of registered shares 272,200,000 272,200,000
Number of registered shares sold out to public 272,200,000 272,200,000
Enmone s hnres 272,200,000 272,200,000
l Number of treasury shares 0 0
Common shares 0 0
' Number of shares in circulation 272,200,000 272,200,000
Common shares 272,200,000 272,200,000
I Par value of share in circulation: VND per share 10,000 10,000
l 30
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19. Off-balance sheet item

a. Outsourced assets

The Company signed land lease agreements in Tho Xuong Ward, Bac Giang City, Bac Giang Province for production and
business purposes from 2007 to 2058. The leased land area is 85,51811 ha. According to these agreements, the Company
must pay annual land rent until its maturity date following current State regulations.

In addition, the Company signed a land lease contract in Tran Quang Dieu Ward, Quy Nhon City, Binh Dinh Province, to
serve as the Company's representative office in Binh Dinh Province from 2001 to 2045. The leased land area is 349m2.
According to current state regulations, the Company must pay annual land rent until the contract maturity date.

b. Foreign currencies

01/01/2024

Original currency

VND converted

Original currency

VYND converted

USD 9,675,035.93 244,294,657,234 7,534,702.72 180,870,412,162
Total 9,675,035.93 244,294,657,234 7,534,702.72 180,870,412,162

¢. Other items 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Accounts receivable have been written off 134,000,000 0
Total 134,000,000 0

VI. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. Net revenue from goods sold and services rendered Year 2024 Year 2023
Net revenue from goods, products sold 4,439,477,098,072 4,413,475,970,445
Total 4,439,477,098,072 4,413,475,970,445

2. Cost of goods sold Year 2024 Year 2023
Cost of goods, products sold 4,161,818,996,381 4,428,747,705,041
Total 4,161,818,996,381 4,428,747,705,041

3. Financial income Year 2024 Year 2023

Interest from loans, deposits
Dividends, profit received

Foreign exchange gain during the period
Others
Total

4, Financial expenses

Loan interest expense

Foreign exchange loss during the period
Foreign exchange loss due to revaluation

Total

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements

1,456,880,594
5,189,436,000
20,252,070,422

3,121,556,949
5,861,889,000
3,170,702,735

0 92,084,638
26,898,387,016 12,246,233,322
Year 2024 Year 2023
203,307,955,862 642,445,738,924
1,961,190,187 359,372,234
67,667,275,146 47,558,939,282
272,936,421,195 690,364,050,440
31
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5. Selling expenses and General and administrative expenses

a. Selling expenses

Raw materials

Other costs in cash (transportation, advertisements,..

Total
b. General and administrative expenses
Staff cost

Management material costs

Fixed asset depreciation
Taxes, fees, charges
External services

Other costs in cash
Total

6. Other income

Proceed from leasing assets

Income from interest expenses written off, reduced interest rate (*)

Income from inventory discrepancies
Income from asset liquidation
Others

Total

)

Year 2024

Year 2023

2,367,015,194
83,980,965,287

2,844,537,756
91,923,706,275

86,347,980,481

94,768,244,031

41,676,087,556
9,144,790,826
14,097,140,318

53,783,861,842
8,044,105,119
13,801,805,265

8,074,400,720 4,899,129,922
6,766,547,235 8,556,057,989
56,065,397,498 67,553,267,240
135,824,364,153 156,638,227,377
Year 2024 Year 2023
260,244,371 231,685,823
242,846,771,107 1,802,057,603,374
4,438,999,198 0
232,933,333 0
1,203,744,216 1,555,975,834
248,982,692,225 1,803,845,265,031

(*) The Company is allowed to write off the interest on the overdue debt that has not been collected until 21 December 2023
at the Vietnam Development Bank - Northeast Branch, as per Notice No. 53/TB-NHPT.BDB dated 31 January 2024. The
written-off and reduced interest amount is recognized as other income during the year.

. Other expenses

Depreciation of assets suspended for repairs
Others

Total

. Business costs by factor
Raw material cost
Labor cost
Fixed asset depreciation
External services

Other costs in cash
Total

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Year 2024 Year 2023
50,534,133,496 0
1,050,865,001 764,790,819
51,584,998,497 764,790,819
Year 2024 Year 2023
2,683,463,701,968 2,827,340,939,546
201,258,479,552 267,046,334,800
576,139,896,653 624,767,388,163
436,203,019,558 346,719,988,638
388,398,682,382 441,334,007,178
4,285,463,780,113 4,507,208,658,325
32
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9. Current Corporate income tax expense Year 2024 Year 2023
Total accounting profit before tax 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
Adjustments to increase 172,050,000 609,513,728

- Non-deductible expenses 32,000,000 515,013,728
é}?;?;;iﬁﬁon of non-executive Board of Directors and Board of 140,050,000 94,500,000
Adjustments to decrease (5,189,436,000) (5,861,889,000)

- Dividends, profit received (5,189,436,000) (5,861,889,000)
Loss from previous years carried forward (1,828,030,606) (853,032,075,818)
Taxable income 0 0
Tax rate 20% 20%
Total current Corporate income tax expense 0 0

10. Basic earnings per share Year 2024 Year 2023
Accounting profit after corporate income tax 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
Adjustments to increase or decrease 0 0
Profit or loss allocated to common shareholders 6,845,416,606 858,284,451,090
Average common shares outstanding during the period 272,200,000 272,200,000
Basic earnings per share 25.15 3,153.14

11.

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The risks from financial instruments include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Management considers the application of management policies for the above risks as follows:

11.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
prices. There are three market risks: interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risks, for example, risk of stock
price. Financial instruments affected by the market risks include borrowings and liabilities, deposits, and available-for-sale
investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market prices. Market risks due to changes in the interest rate of the Company mainly relate to: borrowings and liabilities,
cash, and short-term deposits.

The Company manages the interest rate risk by analyzing the competition status in the market in order to apply the interest
rate that brings benefits to the Company while is still within the limit of its risk management.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in the exchange rate. The Company bears risks due to changes in the exchange rate of currencies other than VND
related directly to the Company's operating activities.

The Company manages foreign currency risk by considering current and expected market conditions when planning future
transactions in foreign currencies. The Company does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risks.

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 33

L W

L P S

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024 Unit: VND

11.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument or customer contract will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Company bears credit risks from operating activities (mainly trade
receivables) and from its financial activities including bank deposits, foreign exchange operations and other financial
instruments,

Trade receivables

The Company minimizes the credit risk by only doing business with entities that have a good financial capacity and closely
keeping track of the liabilities to speed up the recovery of debts. On the basis of this method and receivables related to
different customers, the credit risk does not concentrate on a certain customer.

Bank deposits

The company mainly maintains deposits at large and prestigious banks in Vietnam. The Company finds that the
concentration of credit risk on bank deposits is low.

11.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from difficulty in fulfillin
of the Company mainly arises from the difference in the mat

The Company supervises liquidity risk by maintaining an amount of cash, cash e

g financial obligations due to a lack of capital. The liquidity risk
urity of the financial assets and liabilities.

quivalents and borrowings from banks at the

level that the Board of Management considers sufficient to satisfy the Company's activities and minimize influences of

changes in cash flows.

The following table summarizes liquidity deadline of the Compan
in accordance with contract which are not discounted:

y's financial liabilities on the basis of estimated payments

As at 31/12/2024 Less than 1 year Over 1 year Total
Borrowings and liabilities 415,263,223,306 2,369,906,200,000 2,785,169,423,306
Trade payables 386,144,351,853 0 386,144,351,853
Accrued expenses 576,813,743 0 576,813,743
Other short-term payables 206,292,188,042 2,085,715,122,631 2,292,007,310,673
Total 1,008,276,576,944 4,455,621,322,631 5,463,897,899,575

As at 01 January 2024

Borrowings and liabilities

374,004,949,047

2,515,074,490,000

2,889,079,439,047

Trade payables 414,511,282,093 0 414,511,282,093
Accrued expenses 8,998,258,018 0 8,998,258,018
Other short-term payables 196.636,772,786  2,538,419,080,194  2,735,055,852,980

Total 994,151,261,944  5,053,493,570,194  6,047,644,832,138

The Company can access capital sources and loans due within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Secured assets

The Company used part of land use rights, bank deposits and cash e

quivalents, trade receivables, inventories, machinery and

equipment, buildings and structures, and land use rights as collateral for short-term and long-term borrowings from banks

(Detail in Note "Borrowings and finance lease liabilities").

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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The following table presents the book value and fair value of financial instruments presented in the Company’s Financial Statements:

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is stated at the value that the
The Company uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value:

disposal.
The fair value of cash on hand and short-term deposits

are in short-term.

HABAC NITROGENOUS FERTILIZER AND CHEMICALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12. Financial assets and liabilities

|

01/01/2024

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

31/12/2024

Provision Value Provision Value Value

Value

Financial assets

321,675,669,771

371,815,496,069

0
0

321,675,669,771

0
0
0
0

(5,210,337,062)
(5,210,337,062)

371,815,496,069
48,000,000,000

- Cash and cash equivalents

18,000,000,000

48,000,000,000

18,000,000,000

- Short-term held-to-maturity investments

- Other long-term investments

5,320,000,000
200,035,369,805
755,558,083,243
1,300,589,122,819

5,820,000,000

194,518,231,831

3,556,066,097
200,035,369,805
760,902,420,305
1,304,169,525,978

3,556,066,097
194,518,231,831
760,857,251,675

0

(5,344,337,062)

- Trade receivables

755,646,914,613

- Other receivables

1,375,800,642,513

(5,344,337,062)

1,378,747,045,672

TOTAL

Financial liabilities

2,889,079,439,047

2,785,169,423,306

0
0

2,889,079,439,047

0
0

2,785,169,423,306

- Borrowings and liabilities

414,511,282,093

414,511,282,093 386,144,351,853

386,144,351,853

- Trade payables

8,998,258.018
2,735,055,852,980

576,813,743

2,292,007,310,673

8,998,258,018
2,735,055,852,980

0
0
0

576,813,743

2,292,007,310,673
5,463,897,899,575

- Accrued expenses

0
0

- Other payables

TOTAL

6,047,644,832,138

5,463,897,899,575

6,047,644,832,138
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VII. OTHER INFORMATION
1. Contingent liabilities, commitments and other financial information

The Company has been working with the EPC Contractor of Package 8 - Design, procurement of equipment and materials,
construction, operation and handover of the factory to settle additional payments for the Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer Plant
Renovation and Expansion Project. This may lead to future receivables and payables to the contractor and other related
parties.

Accumulated loss of VND 669,733,694,565 from the time of determining the enterprise value to the time of official
conversion to a joint stock company (from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015) was transferred to the joint stock
company based on Disclosure of the initial share offering of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Company Limited
and Decision No. 15/QD-HCVN dated 6 January 2017 of Vietnam National Chemical Group on approving the final
settlement of equitization of Ha Bac Nitrogenous Fertilizer and Chemicals Company Limited at the time of conversion.

2. Transaction with related parties

Significant transactions and balances with related parties during the period are as follows:

Incurred during Closing balance

Related parties Relation Nature of transaction thevear receivable (payable)
Revenue and
3 3 . expenditure from
;imam Bl Chemical Parent company liquidation of unused 0 (1,693,506,388)
P assets upon
equitization
DAP - Vinachem Joint .
Siick Codiapaiy Same parent company Selling goods 29,258,400,000 0
DAP2 - Vinachem Joint :
Stoek Company Same parent company Selling goods 64,167,480,000 0
Habac Liquefied Gas Joint ; Selling goods 9,340,474,270 902,310,017
Associate = .
Stock Company o ~_ Dividend receipt 5,189,436,000 0
i Institut f .
ST WS Same parent company Purchase of chemicals 0 (358,930,000)

Industrial Chemistry

+ Income of the Board of Directors, Board of Management and Chief Accountant
Name Position Content Year 2024

Chairman of the Remuneration of the Board of Directors and

Nguyen Van Thisu Board of Directors other income 82,625,000
General Director ; .
Sal t d of
Nguyen Duc Ninh (Retirement on R atas é";’t}‘i’efrﬂ.}fﬁﬁ b 363,477,000
01/11/2024)
General General i .
Sal t d of D
Nguyen Van Dung Director (Appointed rem““";i = ;f.;fcggf e 397,786,800
on 01/11/2024)
i he B irects
Pham Van Trung Dtaputy General Salary, remuneration oftl e Board of Directors 390,046,800
Director and other income
Wiuyen Diii Hoog Df:puty General Salary, remuneration of t]_1e Board of Directors 349,766,600
Director and other income
Member of the Board
of Directors Salary, remuneration of the Board of Directors
Ngyea g Hung (from January 2024 and other income LTI
to April 23, 2024)
R ion of the B Di
Nigoyen Thven Adh Mexqber of the Board emuneration of the : oard of Directors and 18,455,000
of Directors other income
Ha Xuan Han Hend, ot the Brrd of Salary and other income 304,210,200
Supervisors
R ion of fS i d
Le Anh Tuan Member r;ff the Board Remuneration of the B?ard of Supervisors an 57,425,000
of Supervisors other income
36
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2. Transaction with related parties (continued)

th

Name Position Content Year 2024

Member of the Board Remuneration of the Board of Supervisors and
of Supervisors other income

Le Anh Tuan Chief Accountant Salary and other income 304,210,200

Dang Thi Minh Ly 57,425,000

- Presentation of assets, revenue and results of operation by segment

Because the company's operations primarily focus on producing and trading fertilizers in Bac Giang province, the company
does not prepare segment reports by geographical area and business sector.

. Information on the going-concern operation

The Company will continue operating in the future.

. Comparative figures

Comparative figures as at 01 January 2024 on the Balance Sheet and in 2023 on the Income Statement and Cash Flow
Statement taken from the Company's Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 were audited by
MOORE AISC Auditing and Informatics Services Co., Ltd.

. Events occurred after the balance sheet date
There are no significant events occurring after the end of the accou quire adjustment and presentation in
this financial statements.
=
5/ CO PHAN
PHAN DAM V& -

%M e
Nguyen Thi Hong Nhung Le Anh Tuan Nguyen Van Dung
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

Bac Giang, 03 March 2025

These notes are an integral part of the financial statements 37
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Address: Tran Nguyen Han Street, Tho Xuong Ward, Bac Giang City, Bac Giang Province
Tel: (84-204) 3854538
Fax: (84-204) 3855018
Email: Info@damhabac.com.vn
Website: damhabac.com.vn
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